LAKEFRONT ESTATES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT

GLADES COUNTY
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
OCTOBER 22, 2025
11:00 A.M.

Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

www.lakefrontestatescdd.org
561.630.4922 Telephone
877.5DS.4922 Toll Free
561.630.4923 Facsimile




@

mmooO >

AGENDA

LAKEFRONT ESTATES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
27182 State Road 78
Okeechobee, Florida 34974
TO JOIN VIA CONFERENCE CALL
DIAL IN AT 1-800-743-4099 PARTICIPANT PASSCODE: 9363638
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
October 22, 2025

11:00 A.M.

Call to Order

Proof of PUBIICALION. ... e e e e e Page 1
Establish Quorum

Additions or Deletions to Agenda

Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda

Approval of Minutes

1. September 25, 2025 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing..............ccooooiiii i Page 3
Old Business

New Business

1. Consider Approval of First Supplemental Engineer’s Report...........ccoevveiiiiii i iiiiinnnnn, Page 7
2. Consider Resolution No. 2025-09 — Delegation Resolution.............oeveiiiiiiiii i i ienenn, Page 18
Administrative Matters

Board Member Comments

Adjourn



Proof of Publication
10/14/2025

STATE OF FLORIDA:
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH:

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared
Katrina Elsken Muros, who on oath says that she is
Editor in Chief of the Lake Okeechobee News, a
weekly newspaper published in Palm Beach County,
Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement,
being a Public Notice in the matter of

Public Notice

in the 15th Judicial District of the Circuit Court of Palm
Beach County, Florida, was published in said newspa-
per in the issues of or by publication on the
newspaper’s website, if authorized, on

Lake Okeechobee News: 10/8/2025

LakeONews.com: 10/8/2025, 10/9/2025, 10/10/2025,
10/11/2025, 10/12/2025, 10/13/2025, 10/14/2025

Affiant further says that the newspaper complies with
all legal requirements for publication in Chapter 50,
Florida Statutes.

Sworn to and subscribed before me by means of

Physical Presence X Online Notarization
physical presence or online notarization, this
10/14/2025

Name LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

Order Number 31051

Ordered By LAURA J ARCHER

Order Date 9/29/2025

Description Community Development District — Fiscal
Year 2025/2026 Meeting Schedule

Number Issues 8

Pub Count 2

First Issue 10/8/2025

Last Issue 10/14/2025

Publications Lake Okeechobee News, LakeONews.com

Pub Dates Lake Okeechobee News: 10/8/2025
LakeONews.com: 10/8/2025, 10/9/2025,
10/10/2025, 10/11/2025, 10/12/2025,
10/13/2025, 10/14/2025 Page 1



LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING
SEPTEMBER 25, 2025
A CALL TO ORDER
The September 25, 2025, Regular Board Meeting of the Lakefront Estates Community Development
District (the “District”) was called to order at 3:10 p.m. at 27182 State Road 78 Okeechobee, Florida
34974,
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION
Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been
published in the Lake Okeechobee News on September 3, 2025 and September 10, 2025, as legally
required.

C. CONSIDER RESIGNATION

A motion was made by Mr. Zion, seconded by Mr. Blasberg and passed unanimously accepting the
resignation of Mr. Jason Weg from seat No. 5.

D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM

A quorum was established with the following Supervisors in attendance:

Chairman Dovber Blasberg, Yitzchok Braun, and Jonathan Zion.

Also in attendance were District Manager Andrew Karmeris of Special District Services, Inc.; District
Manager Michelle Krizen of Special District Services, Inc. (via phone); District Counsel Wes Haber of
Kutak Rock (via phone).

E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA

There were no additions or deletions to the agenda.

F. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda.

G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. March 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

A motion was made by Mr. Zion, seconded by Mr. Blasberg and passed unanimously approving the
minutes of the March 19, 2025, Regular Board Meeting, as presented.

H. OLD BUSINESS

Page 1 of 5
Page 2



There was no old business to come before the Board.
l. NEW BUSINESS
1. Consider No. 2025-03 — Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Meeting Schedule
Resolution No. 2025-03 was presented, entitled:
RESOLUTION 2025-03

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE
LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING
SCHEDULE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026 AND
SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID
DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Mr. Zion, seconded by Mr. Blasberg and passed unanimously adopting
Resolution No. 2025-03, as presented.

2. Consider No. 2025-04 — Amending Resolution 2025-01 and Resetting the Public Hearing
to Consider the Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget

Resolution No. 2025-04 was presented, entitled:
RESOLUTION 2025-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
THE LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION
2025-01 AND TO RESET THE DATE AND TIME OF THE
PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FISCAL YEAR
2025/2026 FINAL BUDGET; RATIFYING THE STAFF
ACTIONS IN RESETTING THE PUBLIC HEARING;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND
PROVIDNG AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Mr. Zion, seconded by Mr. Blasberg and passed unanimously adopting
Resolution No. 2025-04, as presented.

3. Consider No. 2025-05 — Extending Terms of Office
Resolution No. 2025-05 was presented, entitled:

RESOLUTION 2025-05

Page 2 of 5
Page 3



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
THE LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT EXTENDING THE TERMS
OF OFFICE OF ALL CURRENT SUPERVISORS TO
COINCIDE WITH THE GENERAL ELECTION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 190.006, FLORIDA STATUTES;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Mr. Zion, seconded by Mr. Braun and passed unanimously adopting Resolution
No. 2025-05, as presented.

4. Consider Approval of Preliminary Amended and Restated Master Methodology Report
Mr. Karmeris presented the report.

A motion was made by Mr. Zion, seconded by Mr. Blasberg and passed unanimously approving the
Preliminary Amended and Restated Master Methodology Report in draft substantial final form.

5. Consider Approval of Preliminary First Supplemental Methodology Report
Mr. Karmeris presented the report.

A motion was made by Mr. Braun, seconded by Mr. Zion and passed unanimously approving the
Preliminary First Supplemental Methodology Report in draft substantial final form.

6. Consider No. 2025-06 — Rescinding Prior Levy & Declaring Assessments
Resolution No. 2025-06 was presented, entitled:
RESOLUTION 2025-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE LAKEFRONT
ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT RESCINDING
RESOLUTIONS 2024-01, 2024-02, AND 2024-04 IN THEIR ENTIRETY;
DECLARING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; INDICATING THE LOCATION,
NATURE AND ESTIMATED COST OF THOSE INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS WHOSE COST IS TO BE DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING THE PORTION OF THE ESTIMATED COST OF
THE IMPROVEMENTS TO BE DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS;
PROVIDING THE MANNER IN WHICH SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL
BE MADE; PROVIDING WHEN SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE
PAID; DESIGNATING LANDS UPON WHICH THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
SHALL BE LEVIED; PROVIDING FOR AN ASSESSMENT PLAT; ADOPTING A
PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF
THIS RESOLUTION.

Page 3 of 5
Page 4



A motion was made by Mr. Zion, seconded by Mr. Blasberg and passed unanimously adopting
Resolution No. 2025-06 noting that the exhibits including the methodology reports were in draft
substantial form.

7. Consider No. 2025-07 — Setting Assessment Hearing
Resolution No. 2025-07 was presented, entitled:
RESOLUTION 2025-07

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE LAKEFRONT
ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SETTING A PUBLIC
HEARING TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 19TH, 2025, AT 11:00 A.M. AT 27182
STATE ROAD 78 OKEECHOBEE, FLORIDA 34974, FOR THE PURPOSE OF
HEARING PUBLIC COMMENT ON IMPOSING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON
CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE DISTRICT GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS
THE LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES.

A motion was made by Mr. Zion, seconded by Mr. Braun and passed unanimously adopting Resolution
No. 2025-07, as presented.

The Regular Board Meeting was then recessed and the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2025/2026
Final Budget.

J. PUBLIC HEARING - Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget
1. Proof of Publication

Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Public Hearing had been published
in the Lake Okeechobee News on September 3, 2025 and September 10, 2025, as legally required.

2. Receive Public Comment Regarding Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget
There was no public comment regarding the District’s Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget.
3. Consider Resolution No. 2025-08 — Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget
Resolution No. 2025-08 was presented, entitled:
RESOLUTION 2025-08

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE
LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) RELATING TO THE ANNUAL
APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING THE BUDGET(S)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2025,

Page 4 of 5
Page 5



AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2026; AUTHORIZING
BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion was made by Mr. Zion, seconded by Mr. Blasberg and passed unanimously adopting
Resolution No. 2025-08, as presented.

The Public Hearing Authorizing adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget was closed and the
regular board meeting reconvened.

K. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
There were no administrative matters.

L. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
There were no further Board Member comments.
M. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, chairman Blasberg adjourned the meeting at
3:28 p.m.

ATTESTED BY:

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice-Chair

Page 5 of 5
Page 6



FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEER’S REPORT FOR THE

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
July 07, 2025

1. PURPOSE

This report supplements the District’'s Engineer’s Report, dated December 2023 (“Master
Report”) for the purpose of describing the first phase of the District’s CIP* to be known as the “2025
Project” a/k/a “Assessment Area One Project.”

2. 2025 Project

The District’s 2025 Project includes the portion of the CIP that is necessary for the development
of what is known as “Phase 1A” (“Assessment Area One”) of the District. A legal description and sketch
for Assessment Area One are shown in Exhibit A.

Product Mix

The table below shows the product types that will be part of the 2025 Project:

Product Types

Product Type Units
Residential 22’ 24 homes
Residential 50’ 42 homes
Residential 60’ 23 homes
Residential 75’ 84 homes
Residential 100’ 19 homes
Residential 120’ 4 homes

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL 196 homes
Commercial — Religious 18,231 sf
Commercial — Other Uses 191,605 sf
TOTAL COMMERCIAL 209,836 sf

List of 2025 Project Improvements

The various improvements that are part of the overall CIP — including those that are part of the 2025
Project — are described in detail in the Master Report, and those descriptions are incorporated herein.
The 2025 Project includes, generally stated, the following items relating to Assessment Area One:
stormwater management, utilities, perimeter roadways/hardscape/landscape/irrigation, conservation,
the differential cost of undergrounding electrical conduit, and soft costs.  [Also, the 2025 Project
includes the development of the following off-site improvements:16” watermain from OUA’s elevated
water tank in Buckhead Ridge to the Project Site, and Turn Lanes 1 & 2]

I All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Master
Report.

Page 7



Permits

The status of the applicable permits necessary for the 2025 Project is as shown below. All
permits and approvals necessary for the development of the 2025 Project have been obtained or are
reasonably expected to be obtained in due course.

Permit Table
Phase Agency Permit & Number Date Approved/Status

Phase 1A SFWMD ERP 22-108575P 10/13/2023
Phase 1A [FDOT Turn Lane 1 Access 2017-A-191-024 8/18/2020
Phase 1A |[FDOT Turn Lane 2 Access Pending

Phase 1A [FDOT Drainage 2017-D-191-016 8/18/2020
Phase 1A [FDEP — Water Distribution 0081040-116-DS 2/28/2024
Phase 1A [FDEP — Sewer Collection 449953-001-DWC 7/12/2024
Phase 1A |[FDEP — Sewer System FLABO07447-001-DW3P 8/15/2024
Phase 1A [FDEP — Water Main to Site 0081040-121-DSGP 8/13/2024
Phase 1A |Glades County Major Site Plan N/A 11/18/2024

Estimated Costs

The table below shows the costs that are necessary for delivery of the Assessment Area One lots
for the 2025 Project, which includes the roads, utilities, and other improvements specific to Assessment
Area One as well as “master” improvements that may be outside of those phases such as offsite roads
and utilities, the amenity, etc. Costs are further allocated between Residential and Commercial uses
based on the utility report usage and projected land use distribution within Assessment Area One.

ESTIMATED COSTS OF DELIVERING THE ASSESSMENT AREA ONE PROJECT

Improvement Total Estimated Cost Residential Commercial
Wetland Basins $375,000 67.28% $252,310 32.72% $122,690
Earthwork $2,400,000 67.28% $1,614,785 32.72% $785,215
Roadways $3,959,216 67.28% $2,663,867 32.72% $1,295,349
Entrance Features $500,000 67.28% $336,413 32.72% $163,587
Water Supply Facilities $7,094,807 54.30% $3,852,480 45.70% $3,242,327
Sanitary Sewer Facilities $7,864,796 54.30% $4,270,584 45.70% $3,594,212
Stormwater Mgt. Facilities $1,141,490 67.28% $768,025.26 32.72% $373,464.74
Electrical $878,377 71.00% $623,647.67 29.00% $254,729.33
Landscaping/Parks $750,000 67.28% $504,620 32.72% $245,380
Professional Fees $1,000,000 67.28% $672,827 32.72% $327,173
Total $25,963,686 $15,559,560 $10,404,126
Contingency (10%) $2,596,368.60 $1,555,956.02 $1,040,412.58
TOTAL $28,560,055 $17,115,516.20 $11,444,538.40

a. Costs are prorated between Residential and Commercial uses to reflect the proportional benefit received by

each property type. Adjustments may be made during true-up based on final development plans.
b. The probable costs estimated herein do not include anticipated carrying cost, interest reserves or other

anticipated CDD expenditures that may be incurred.

The developer reserves the right to finance any of the improvements outlined above, and have such
improvements owned and maintained by a property owner’s or homeowner’s association, in which case such
items would not be part of the CIP.

Page 8




d. The District may enter into an agreement with a third-party, or an applicable property owner’s or homeowner’s
association, to maintain any District-owned improvements, subject to the approval of the District’'s bond
counsel.

e. Impact fee credits may be available from master roadway and utility improvements. The developer and the
District will enter into an acquisition agreement whereby the developer may elect to keep any such credits,
provided that consideration is provided to the District in the form of improvements, land, a prepayment of debt
assessments, or other consideration.

While the delivery of the 2025 Project will necessarily involve the installation of certain “master”
improvements, the District’s 2025 Project is a part of the entire CIP, which functions as a system of
improvements that includes the entire CIP for Lakefront Estates CDD. Accordingly, the 2025 Project lots
only receive a pro-rated benefit from the overall CIP based on “ERU” factors as established under the
District’s assessment reports.

3. CONCLUSION

The 2025 Project will be designed in accordance with current governmental regulations and
requirements. The 2025 Project will serve its intended function so long as the construction is in
substantial compliance with the design.

It is further our opinion that:

e the estimated cost to the 2025 Project as set forth herein is reasonable based on prices
currently being experienced in the jurisdiction in which the District is located, and is not greater
than the lesser of the actual cost of construction or the fair market value of such infrastructure;

e all of the improvements comprising the CIP are required by applicable development approvals
issued pursuant to Section 380.06, Florida Statutes;

e the 2025 Project is feasible to construct, there are no technical reasons existing at this time that
would prevent the implementation of the 2025 Project, and it is reasonable to assume that all
necessary regulatory approvals will be obtained in due course; and

e the assessable property within the District will receive a special benefit from the 2025 Project
that is at least equal to the costs of the 2025 Project.

As described above, this report identifies the benefits from the 2025 Project to the lands within
the District. The general public, property owners, and property outside the District will benefit from the
provisions of the District’s CIP; however, these are incidental to the District’s 2025 Project, which is
designed solely to provide special benefits peculiar to property within the District. Special and peculiar
benefits accrue to property within the District and enable properties within its boundaries to be
developed.

The 2025 Project will be owned by the District or other governmental units and such 2025
Project is intended to be available and will reasonably be available for use by the general public (either
by being part of a system of improvements that is available to the general public or is otherwise
available to the general public) including nonresidents of the District. All of the 2025 Project is or will be
located on lands owned or to be owned by the District or another governmental entity or on perpetual

Page 9



easements in favor of the District or other governmental entity. The 2025 Project, and any cost
estimates set forth herein, do not include any earthwork, grading or other improvements on private lots
or property. The District will pay the lesser of the cost of the components of the 2025 Project or the
fair market value.

Please note that the 2025 Project as presented herein is based on current plans and market
conditions which are subject to change. Accordingly, the 2025 Project, as used herein, refers to
sufficient public infrastructure of the kinds described herein (i.e., stormwater/floodplain management,
sanitary sewer, potable water, etc.) to support the development and sale of the planned residential
units in the District, which (subject to true-up determinations) number and type of units may be
changed with the development of the site. Stated differently, during development and implementation
of the public infrastructure improvements as described for the District, it may be necessary to make
modifications and/or deviations for the plans, and the District expressly reserves the right to do so.

Steven L. Dobbs, P.E. Date 7/07/2025

Page 10



EXHIBIT A:

Legal description and sketch for Assessment Area One

Page 11



SKETCH AND LEGAL
DESCRIPTION
(THIS IS NOT A SURVEY)

LAKEFRONT ESTATES PHASE 1A
NOT VALID WITHOUT SHEETS 2-6

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 39 SOUTH, RANGE 34 EAST AND SECTIONS 34 AND 35, TOWNSHIP 38 SOUTH, RANGE 34 EAST, GLADES COUNTY, FLORIDA
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 3, THENCE NORTH 89°37'20" EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 3, A DISTANCE OF 1,934.57 FEET TO A POINT
OF THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 78 PER OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 361 AT PAGE 931 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF GLADES COUNTY, FLORIDA;

THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) CALLS ARE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE:
1) THENCE NORTH 57°51'10" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 949.81 FEET,;

2) THENCE NORTH 58°05'19" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 160.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
3) THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 58°05'19" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 32°10'34" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 19.83 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 57°10'10" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1,235.92 FEET,

THENCE NORTH 58°05'19" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 361.14 FEET,

THENCE NORTH 72°39'59" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 51.73 FEET,;

THENCE NORTH 59°15'09" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 393.13 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 32°10'34" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 8.40 FEET,;

THENCE NORTH 57°30'37" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 638.64 FEET,

THENCE SOUTH 32°37'41" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 173.44 FEET,

THENCE SOUTH 20°57'23" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.25 FEET,;

THENCE SOUTH 15°31'55" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 74.95 FEET

THENCE SOUTH 57°43'56" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 536.33 FEET,

THENCE SOUTH 32°10'34" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 990.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 20.00 FEET AND A DEGREE OF
CURVATURE OF 90°00'00";

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 31.42 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 57°49'26" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET AND A
DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 60°00'00";

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 62.83 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 57°49'26" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 108.04 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 32°10'34" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 349.71 FEET,
THENCE NORTH 89°34'44" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 137.73 FEET,

THENCE SOUTH 00°25'16" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 95.33 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, SAID CURVE BEING CONCAVE NORTHERLY, AND HAS A RADIUS OF
500.00 FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 78°44'22" WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 67.07 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 07°41'29",

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 67.12 FEET,;

THENCE NORTH 74°53'38" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 114.63 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 170.00 FEET AND A DEGREE OF
CURVATURE OF 47°16'30";

***SEE SHEET 2 FOR CONTINUATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1. NOT VALID WITHOUT THE SIGNATURE AND ORIGINAL SEAL OR A DIGITAL SIGNATURE OF A FLORIDA
LICENSED PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND MAPPER. THIS INSTRUMENT MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN
PART OR WHOLE WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF THE SIGNING SURVEYOR.

2. LANDS DESCRIBED HEREON WERE NOT ABSTRACTED, BY THE SURVEYOR, FOR OWNERSHIP, EASEMENTS,
RIGHTS-OF-WAY OR OTHER INSTRUMENTS THAT MAY APPEAR IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF GLADES
COUNTY, FLORIDA.

3. THE DESCRIPTION CONTAINED HEREIN AND THE ATTACHED SKETCH DOES NOT REPRESENT A FIELD
BOUNDARY SURVEY. SIGNED: DATE:

RICHARD E. BARNES I1I
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND MAPPER NO. 7074
STATE OF FLORIDA

SKETCH AND LEGAL SCALE: PROJECT NO: REVISION:
DESCRIPTION N/A 23-109

(THIS IS NOT A SURVEY)
LAKEFRONT ESTATES PHASE 1A

GLNQ‘ES COUN'LYAFLORIDA

DATE: CAD FILE: SHEET:
03/14/25 23-109 10F6

1 -




SKETCH AND LEGAL
DESCRIPTION
(THIS IS NOT A SURVEY)
LAKEFRONT ESTATES PHASE 1A

NOT VALID WITHOUT SHEETS 1 & 3-6
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 140.27 FEET,
THENCE SOUTH 57°49'52" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 35.60 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 38°50'32" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 40.27 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 20.00 FEET, A
CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 17°40'07" WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 25.80 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 80°19'30";

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 28.04 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 48°42'35" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 73.94 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 20.00 FEET, A
CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 72°20'06" WEST AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 30.57 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 99°40'56";

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 34.80 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 57°49'26" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 88.40 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET AND A DEGREE
OF CURVATURE OF 12°23'26";

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 10.81 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 45°26'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 598.80 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 20.00 FEET AND A DEGREE OF
CURVATURE OF 90°00'00";

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 31.42 FEET,

THENCE SOUTH 45°26'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 20.00 FEET, A
CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 89°34'00" WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 28.28 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 90°00'00";

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 31.42 FEET,;
THENCE SOUTH 45°26'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 259.84 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 41°46'59" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 160.19 FEET,

THENCE SOUTH 45°26'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 866.66 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 300.00
FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 28°56'49" WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 90.96 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 17°26'19";

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 91.31 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 43°0322" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 82.43 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE WESTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 20.00 FEET, A
CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 00°26'00" WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 28.28 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 90°00'00";

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 31.42 FEET,
THENCE SOUTH 45°26'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 80.00 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 44°34'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 131.28 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 33°22'24" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5.42 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 240.00 FEET, A
CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 76°55'08" WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 166.47 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 40°35'04";

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 170.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 01°5521" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 44.60 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 59°11'04" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 83.29 FEET,;

THENCE SOUTH 81°55'59" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 104.63 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 45°26'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 30.40 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 240.00 FEET AND A DEGREE OF
CURVATURE OF 90°00'00";

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 376.99 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 44°34'00" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 270.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 240.00 FEET AND A DEGREE OF
CURVATURE OF 88°06'19";

THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 369.05 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 45°25'10" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 540.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 44°34'00" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 120.00 FEET;

***SEE SHEET 3 FOR CONTINUATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

SKETCH AN D LEGAL SCALE: PROJECT NO: REVISION:
DESCRIPTION N/A 23-109
(THIS IS NOT A SURVEY) DATE: CAD FILE: SHEET:
LAKEFRONT ESTATES PHASE 1A ' ) X
03/14/25 23-109 20F6

GLNQ‘ES COUN'LYAFLORIDA

1 _J




SKETCH AND LEGAL
DESCRIPTION

(THIS IS NOT A SURVEY)

LAKEFRONT ESTATES PHASE 1A

NOT VALID WITHOUT SHEETS 1, 2, & 4-6
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

THENCE SOUTH 45°26'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 61.33 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 44°34'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 120.00 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 45°26'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 306.83 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE WESTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 150.00 FEET, AND A DEGREE OF
CURVATURE OF 90°00'00" ;

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE THROUGH, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 235.62 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 44°34'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 86.12 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE ,CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, SAID CURVE HAS A RADIUS OF 530.00 FEET AND A
DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 8°20'49";

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 77.21 FEET TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE, SAID CURVE IS CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY AND HAS A
RADIUS OF 530.00 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 8°20'49";

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 77.21 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 44°34'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 246.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY AND HAS A RADIUS OF 220.00 FEET AND A DEGREE OF
CURVATURE OF 90°00'00";

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 345.58 FEET TO A POINT OF;

THENCE SOUTH 45°26'00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 19.70 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY AND HAS A RADIUS OF 880.00 FEET, A
CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 36°31'23" WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 198.20 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 12°55'56";

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 198.63 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 43°31'35" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 124.46 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY AND HAS A RADIUS OF 1,000.00 FEET, A
CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 29°10'07" WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 101.32 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 05°48'28";

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 101.37 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 9°50'37" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 6.67 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 35°30'16" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 22.15 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY AND HAS A RADIUS OF 1,000.00 FEET, A CHORD
BEARING OF NORTH 00°29'48" EAST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 851.55 FEET AND A DEGREE OF CURVATURE OF 50°23'59";

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 879.64 FEET,;
THENCE NORTH 32°11'11" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 258.86 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 57°49'26" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 963.54 FEET,

THENCE NORTH 32°10'34" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 272.25 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAID LANDS LYING IN GLADES COUNTY, FLORIDA AND CONTAINING 132.530 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

SKETCH AN D LEGAL SCALE: PROJECT NO: REVISION:
DESCRIPTION N/A 23-109
(THIS IS NOT A SURVEY) DATE: CAD FILE: SHEET:
LAKEFRONT ESTATES PHASE 1A ' ) X
03/14/25 23-109 30F6

GLNQ‘ES COUNTY , FLORIDA

Pege4



P.O.C.
—a—— NW CORNER OF
S3-T39S-R34E

NOT VALID WITHOUT SHEETS 1-2 & 5-6 GRAPHIC SCALE

0 300 600
o, | BN B B e
o, 1INCH = 300 FT.
-S>,
(INTENDED DISPLAY SCALE)
R/W LINE PER F.D.O.T. MAINT. R/W LINE PER F.D.O.T. MAINT.
MAP SECTION 05020-000 MAP SECTION 05020-000
- C/L STATE ROAD 78 (R/W WIDTH VARIES) N58°0519'E
ORBSELPG O N N57°48'46"E 949.81' — 16072 L1 /L2 o 1235.92
—_ -
LEGEND: N - —7
— DOT. P.0.B. oT
POB.  =POINT OF BEGINNING RIW TRACT 3 FD.O.T.
POC.  =POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 0331 ACRES + S RIW TRACT 4
oc. = (SHADED) 3 0.281 ACRES *
PG. = PAGE (SHADED)
ORB. = OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK
RIW =RIGHT OF WAY yane N57°49'26"E 963.54'
ciL = CENTERLINE ~
FD.OT. =FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION N
MAINT. = MAINTENANCE o
R = RANGE OR RADIUS 3
s = SECTION OR SOUTH N
T = TOWNSHIP
L = ARC LENGTH
A = DELTA ANGLE
&o(/
S,
g/g/n,&%&fg o
0N
N
& \ <
|_
L
LAKEFRONT ESTATES L
PHASE 1A n
132.530 ACRES = =z
O
<
L40 L0 L
o z
3] —
139 L30 L27 T
o O
O P L26 =
s <
) p=
37 Qo o c11
48 9
!
S
3 -
2 3 W
© " 5A5°26'%%.
a P 366
[=4
SEE SHEET 6 OF 6 >
<
FOR LINE & CURVE 17 3
TABLE ©
ot
O
8 &
|
\\)
=\ 540"
&, 5250
@
A pe 2
L3 )
] 32
SKETCH AND LEGAL SCALE: PROJECT NO: REVISION:
DESCRIPTION 1" =300 23-109
(THIS IS NOT A SURVEY) DATE: CAD FILE: SHEET:
LAKEFRONT ESTATES PHASE 1A 08114105 23100 oG
GLADES COUNTY, FLORIDA
N 14 r-
I -




R/W LINE PER F.D.O.T. MAINT.
MAP SECTION 05020-000

NOT VALID WITHOUT SHEETS 1-4 & 6

0 300 600

[ = .

GRAPHIC SCALE

1INCH = 300 FT.
(INTENDED DISPLAY SCALE)

R/W LINE PER F.D.O.T. MAINT.
MAP SECTION 05020-000

C/L STATE ROAD 78

R/W LINE PER

a

R/W LINE PER

N57°10'10"E 1235.92'  ORB.361,PG.931 —~\/ L3 ~\ ﬁ[" L5 ~ N57°30'37"E 638.64'  orB.361 PG 931
F.D.O.T. \
R/W TRACT 4 L6 ~
0.281 ACRES * -
(SHADED) L8

LEGEND: /

P.O.B.  =POINT OF BEGINNING SEE SHEET 6 OF 6 2

POC.  =POINT OF COMMENCEMENT FOR LINE & CURVE (\» S57°4356"W 53633 ——7

PG. =PAGE

ORB.  =OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK TABLE

RIW =RIGHT OF WAY

CIL = CENTERLINE

F.D.O.T. =FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

MAINT. = MAINTENANCE

R = RANGE OR RADIUS

S = SECTION OR SOUTH )

T = TOWNSHIP

L = ARC LENGTH

A = DELTA ANGLE

/

LAKEFRONT ESTATES
PHASE 1A
132.530 ACRES *

SW CORNER

o~ S35-T38S-R34E

[=)
<
o &
O &

=2 «m‘?/
(2] NE KL

OF L
L S L
= ¥
> D S&
™ N
o @
—
o
I
™
n

c2

SKETCH AND LEGAL
DESCRIPTION
(THIS IS NOT A SURVEY)

LAKEFRONT ESTATES PHASE 1A
GLADES COUNTY  FLORIDA
N L Wal

SCALE: PROJECT NO: REVISION:
1" =300 23-109

DATE: CAD FILE: SHEET:
03/14/25 23-109 50F 6

1 U



NOT VALID WITHOUT SHEETS 1-5

LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE

LINE# BEARING LENGTH LINE# BEARING LENGTH LINE# BEARING LENGTH

L1 N58°05'19"E 50.00' L21 $45°26'00"W 259.84' L41 N32°11'11"W 258.86'

L2 $32°10'34"E 19.83' L22 N41°46'59"W 160.19' L42 N32°10'34"W 272.25'

L3 N58°05'19"E 361.14' L23 N43°03'22"W 82.43'

L4 N72°39'59"E 5173 L24 $45°26'00"W 80.00'

LS N59°15'09"E 393.13' L25 N44°34'00"W 131.28'

L6 N32°10'34"W 8.40' L26 §33°22'24"W 5.42'

L7 S32°37'41"E 173.44' L27 S01°5521"E 44.60'

L8 $20°57'23"W 15.25' L28 $§59°11'04"W 83.29'

L9 S15°31'55"E 74.95' L29 $81°65'69"W 104.63'

L10 N57°49'26"E 60.00' L30 $45°26'00"W 30.40'

L11 N57°49'26"E 108.04' L31 S44°34'00"E 120.00"

L12 $32°10'34"E 349.71' L32 $45°26'00"W 61.33'

L13 N89°34'44"E 137.73' L33 N44°34'00"W 120.00"

L14 S00°25'16"E 95.33' L34 $45°26'00"W 306.83'

L15 N74°53'38"W 114.63' L35 N44°34'00"W 86.12'

L16 S57°49'52"W 35.60' L36 N44°34'00"W 246.00'

L17 $38°50'32"E 40.27 L37 $45°26'00"W 19.70'

L18 $48°42'35"W 73.94' L38 S$43°31'35"W 124.46'

L19 S57°49'26"W 88.40' L39 NO09°50'37"E 6.67'

L20 $45°26'00"W 40.00" L40 N35°30'16"W 22.15'

CURVE TABLE CURVE TABLE
CURVE# | RADIUS | DELTA | ARCLENGTH | CHORD BEARING | CHORD DISTANCE CURVE# | RADIUS | DELTA | ARCLENGTH | CHORD BEARING | CHORD DISTANCE
C1 20.00' 90°00'00" 31.42' N12°49'26"E 28.28' C16 530.00' 8°20'49" 77.21 N40°23'36"W 77.14'
c2 60.00' 60°00'00" 62.83' N27°49'26"E 60.00' C17 530.00' 8°20'49" 77.21 N40°23'36"W 77.14'
C3 500.00' 7°4129" 67.12' N78°44'22"W 67.07' C18 220.00' | 90°00'00" 345.58' N89°34'00"W 31113
C4 170.00' 47°16'30" 140.27 $81°28'07"W 136.32' C19 880.00" [ 12°55'56" 198.63' N36°31'23"W 198.20'
C5 20.00' 80°19'30" 28.04' $17°40'07"W 25.80' C20 1000.00" | 5°4828" 101.37 N29°10'07"W 101.32'
C6 20.00' 99°40'56" 34.80' N72°20'06"W 30.57 c21 1000.00" | 50°23'59" 879.64' N00°29'48"E 851.55'
c7 50.00' 12°23'26" 10.81 S51°37'43"W 10.79'
C8 20.00' 90°00'00" 31.42' $00°26'00"W 28.28'
C9 20.00" 90°00'00" 31.42' N89°34'00"W 28.28'
C10 300.00" | 17°26'19" 91.31' N28°56'49"W 90.96'
Ci11 20.00' 90°00'00" 31.42' $00°26'00"W 28.28'
C12 240.00" | 40°35'04" 170.00" N76°55'08"W 166.47
C13 240.00" | 90°00'00" 376.99' $00°26'00"W 339.41'
C14 240.00" | 88°06'19" 369.05' S88°37'10"E 333.75'
C15 150.00" [ 90°00'00" 235.62' N00°26'00"E 212.13'
SKETCH AND LEGAL SCALE: PROJECT NO: REVISION:
DESCRIPTION 1" =300 23-108
CErmon Ao mansen o | woms | s
GLA.QES COUN'LYH’FLOFHDA

-1




RESOLUTION 2025-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LAKEFRONT
ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING
THE ISSUANCE OF ITS LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES
2025 (ASSESSMENT AREA ONE) (THE “SERIES 2025 BONDS”);
DETERMINING CERTAIN DETAILS OF THE SERIES 2025 BONDS AND
ESTABLISHING CERTAIN PARAMETERS FOR THE SALE THEREOF,;
APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
AND DELIVERY OF A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE;
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATED SALE OF THE SERIES 2025
BONDS; APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT
WITH RESPECT TO THE SERIES 2025 BONDS AND AWARDING THE
SERIES 2025 BONDS TO THE UNDERWRITER NAMED THEREIN;
APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE
DISTRIBUTION OF A PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING
MEMORANDUM RELATING TO THE SERIES 2025 BONDS AND ITS
USE BY THE UNDERWRITER IN CONNECTION WITH THE
OFFERING FOR SALE OF THE SERIES 2025 BONDS; APPROVING
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FINAL LIMITED OFFERING
MEMORANDUM RELATING TO THE SERIES 2025 BONDS;
APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
AND DELIVERY OF A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT;
PROVIDING FOR THE APPLICATION OF THE SERIES 2025 BOND
PROCEEDS; AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS TO DO ALL
THINGS DEEMED NECESSARY IN CONNECTION WITH THE
ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF THE SERIES 2025 BONDS;
MAKING CERTAIN DECLARATIONS; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, Lakefront Estates Community Development District (the “District”) is a
local unit of special purpose government duly organized and existing under the provisions of the
Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as
amended (the “Act”) and created pursuant to Ordinance No. 2023-7 enacted by the Board of
County Commissioners of Glades County, Florida, which became effective on April 11, 2023; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and Resolution No. 2023-30 duly adopted by the Board
of Supervisors on December 20, 2023, the Board of Supervisors has approved the form of a Master
Trust Indenture (the “Master Indenture”), between the District and U.S. Bank Trust Company,
National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”); and

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2023, the District approved a Master Special Assessment
Methodology Report dated December 20, 2023 (as amended and restated as of October 22, 2025),
as supplemented by the First Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report dated

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 18



October 22, 2025 and approved by the Board on October 22, 2025 (collectively, the “Assessment
Methodology”), each prepared by the District’s Methodology Consultant, Special District
Services, Inc., setting forth the District’s methodology for allocating debt to property within the
District, and setting forth the District’s methodology for allocating debt in connection with the
Series 2025 Bonds to property within the first phase of development in the District (*Assessment
Area One”); and

WHEREAS, the District duly adopted Resolution No. 2024-01 on February 21, 2024,
declaring the levy and collection of special assessments (the “Special Assessments”) pursuant to
the Act and Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, indicating the location, nature and estimated cost of the
improvements which cost is to be defrayed by the Special Assessments, providing the manner in
which the Special Assessments will be made, designating the benefited lands upon which the
Special Assessments will be levied, authorizing the preparation of a preliminary assessment roll
and fixing the time and place of a public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the District duly adopted Resolution No. 2024-02 on February 21, 2024
setting a public hearing to be held on March 27, 2024, for the purpose of hearing public comment
on imposing the Special Assessments; and

WHEREAS, the District determined that the development will be constructed in four
phases, and plans to undertake construction of the mixed-use development and to provide public
infrastructure for approximately 1,300 residential units, 31,486 square feet of religious commercial
use and 792,119 square feet of retail and office commercial use, as described more particularly in
the Lakefront Estates Community Development District Engineer’s Report dated December 20,
2023, approved by the Board on December 20, 2023, as supplemented by the First Supplemental
Engineer’s Report dated October 22, 2025, each prepared by Steven L. Dobbs Engineering, LLC,
as summarized in Schedule I, attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, the District has determined to issue its Lakefront Estates Community
Development District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2025 (Assessment Area One) (the “Series
2025 Bonds™) for the primary purpose of providing funds to pay all or a portion of the costs of the
planning, financing, acquisition, construction, equipping and installation of the public
infrastructure within the District for the benefit of approximately 196 residential units, 18,231
square feet of religious commercial use and 191,605 square feet of retail and office commercial
use within Assessment Area One (the “Series 2025 Project”); and

WHEREAS, the District obtained a final judgment in the Twentieth Judicial Circuit Court
in and for Charlotte, Collier, Glades, Hendry and Lee Counties, Florida entered on April 22, 2024,
validating Bonds to be issued under the Indenture (as defined herein), from which no appeal was
filed; and

WHEREAS, the Series 2025 Bonds will be secured by the Special Assessments levied and
imposed on assessable land within Assessment Area One in accordance with the Assessment
Methodology; and

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 19



WHEREAS, there has been submitted to this meeting with respect to the issuance and sale
of the Series 2025 Bonds and submitted to the Board:

Q) a form of First Supplemental Trust Indenture between the Trustee and the
District attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “First Supplemental Indenture” and,
together with the Master Indenture, the “Indenture”);

(i)  a form of Bond Purchase Contract with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds
between FMSbonds, Inc. (the “Underwriter”) and the District attached hereto as
Exhibit B (the “Bond Purchase Contract”), together with the form of a disclosure
statement attached to the Bond Purchase Contract in accordance with Section
218.385, Florida Statutes;

(iti)  aform of Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum relating to the Series
2025 Bonds, attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Preliminary Limited Offering
Memorandum”);

(iv)  aform of Rule 15c2-12 Certificate of the District relating to the Preliminary
Limited Offering Memorandum, attached hereto as Exhibit D (the “Rule 15¢2-12
Certificate”); and

(v) a form of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Continuing
Disclosure Agreement”) to be entered into among the District, the dissemination
agent named therein (the “Dissemination Agent”), and any landowner constituting
an “Obligated Person” under the terms of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement,
attached hereto as Exhibit E;

WHEREAS, any capitalized term used herein and not otherwise expressly defined herein
shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Indenture; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lakefront
Estates Community Development District, as follows:

Section 1. Authorization of Issuance of Series 2025 Bonds. There are hereby
authorized and directed to be issued: the Lakefront Estates Community Development District
Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2025 (Assessment Area One) (the “Series 2025 Bonds”) in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $11,000,000, for the purposes of (i) providing funds to
pay all or a portion of the costs of the planning, financing, acquisition, construction, equipping and
installation of the Series 2025 Project, (ii) making a deposit to the Series 2025 Reserve Account
in an amount equal to the Series 2025 Reserve Requirement, (iii) paying a portion of the interest
coming due on the Series 2025 Bonds, and (iv) paying certain costs of issuance in respect of the
Series 2025 Bonds. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be issued under and secured by the Indenture,
the form of which by reference is hereby incorporated by reference into this resolution as if set
forth in full herein.

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 20



Section 2. Details of the Series 2025 Bonds. The District hereby determines that the
Series 2025 Bonds shall mature in the amounts and at the times, shall bear interest at the rates, be
redeemable at the redemption prices and in the manner as determined by the Chairperson of the
Board of Supervisors (the “Chairperson”) or any member of the Board of Supervisors designated
by the Chairperson (a “Designated Member”), prior to the sale of said Series 2025 Bonds, all in a
manner consistent with the requirements of the Bond Resolution and within the parameters set
forth in Section 5 hereof.

Section 3. First Supplemental Indenture. The District hereby approves and
authorizes the execution of the First Supplemental Indenture by the Chairperson or any Designated
Member and the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Board of Supervisors (the “Secretary”)
and the delivery of the First Supplemental Indenture in substantially the form thereof attached
hereto as Exhibit A, with such changes therein as shall be approved by the Chairperson or
Designated Member executing the same, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of
such officer’s approval and the District’s approval of any changes therein from the form of First
Supplemental Indenture attached hereto.

Section 4. Negotiated Sale. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be sold by a negotiated sale
to the Underwriter. It is hereby determined by the District that a negotiated sale of the Series 2025
Bonds to the Underwriter will best effectuate the purposes of the Act, is in the best interests of the
District and is necessitated by, in general, the characteristics of the issues and prevailing market
conditions and specifically, the following additional reasons:

Q) because of the complexity of the financing structure of the Series 2025 Bonds,
including the pledge of Special Assessments as security for the Series 2025 Bonds, it is desirable
to sell the Series 2025 Bonds pursuant to a negotiated sale so as to have an underwriter involved
from the outset of the financing to assist in these matters;

(i) because of changing market conditions for tax-exempt bonds and the necessity of
being able to adjust the terms of the Series 2025 Bonds, it is in the best interests of the District to
sell the Series 2025 Bonds by a negotiated sale;

(iii)  the Underwriter has participated in structuring the issuance of the Series 2025
Bonds and can assist the District in attempting to obtain the most attractive financing for the
District;

(iv)  the Series 2025 Bonds do not bear a credit rating and will be offered initially only
to accredited investors within the meaning of Chapter 517, Florida Statutes, and the rules of the
Florida Department of Financial Services promulgated thereunder; and

(v) the District will not be adversely affected if the Series 2025 Bonds are not sold
pursuant to a competitive sale.

Section 5. Bond Purchase Contract. The District hereby approves the form of the
Bond Purchase Contract submitted by the Underwriter and attached hereto as Exhibit B, and the
sale of the Series 2025 Bonds by the District upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond

4

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 21



Purchase Contract is hereby approved. The Chairperson or a Designated Member are each hereby
authorized, acting individually, to execute the Bond Purchase Contract and to deliver the Bond
Purchase Contract to the Underwriter. The Bond Purchase Contract shall be in substantially the
form of the Bond Purchase Contract attached hereto as Exhibit B with such changes, amendments,
modifications, omissions and additions as may be approved by the Chairperson or the Designated
Member; provided, however,

Q) If the Series 2025 Bonds are subject to optional redemption, which determination
will be made on or before the sale date of the Series 2025 Bonds, the first optional call date and
the redemption price shall be determined on or before the Bond Purchase Contract is executed;

(i) The interest rate on the Series 2025 Bonds shall not exceed an average net interest
cost rate, which shall be computed by adding 300 basis points to The Bond Buyer “20 Bond Index”
published immediately preceding the first day of the calendar month in which the bonds are sold,
as provided in Section 215.84(3), Florida Statutes, as amended;

(ili)  The aggregate principal amount of the Series 2025 Bonds shall not exceed
$11,000,000;

(iv)  The Series 2025 Bonds shall have a final maturity not later than the maximum term
allowed by Florida law, which is currently thirty (30) years of principal amortization; and

(v) The price at which the Series 2025 Bonds shall be sold to the Underwriter shall not
be less than 98.0% of the aggregate face amount of the Series 2025 Bonds, exclusive of original
issue discount.

Execution by the Chairperson or a Designated Member of the Bond Purchase Contract shall
be deemed to be conclusive evidence of approval of such changes.

Section 6. Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum; Final Limited Offering
Memorandum. The District hereby approves the form of the Preliminary Limited Offering
Memorandum submitted to this meeting and attached hereto as Exhibit C and authorizes its
distribution and use in connection with the limited offering for sale of the Series 2025 Bonds. The
preparation of a final Limited Offering Memorandum relating to the Series 2025 Bonds (the
“Limited Offering Memorandum?”) is hereby approved and the Chairperson or any Designated
Member is hereby authorized to execute such final Limited Offering Memorandum to be dated the
date of the award of the Series 2025 Bonds and, upon such award, to deliver the same to the
Underwriter for use by it in connection with the sale and distribution of the Series 2025 Bonds.
The Limited Offering Memorandum shall be substantially in the form of the Preliminary Limited
Offering Memorandum attached hereto as Exhibit C, with such changes as shall be approved by
the Chairperson or Designated Member as necessary to conform the details of the Series 2025
Bonds and such other insertions, modifications and changes as may be approved by the
Chairperson or Designated Member. The execution and delivery of the Limited Offering
Memorandum by the Chairperson or Designated Member shall constitute evidence of the approval
thereof. The District hereby authorizes the use of the Limited Offering Memorandum and the
information contained therein in connection with the offering and sale of the Series 2025 Bonds.

5

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 22



The Chairperson is further authorized to deem the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum
“final” within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, in the form as mailed, and in furtherance thereof to execute the
Rule 15¢2-12 Certificate evidencing the same substantially in the forms attached hereto as Exhibit
D.

Section 7. Continuing Disclosure. The District hereby authorizes and approves the
execution and delivery of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement by and among the District, the
Dissemination Agent and any landowner constituting an “Obligated Person” under the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, by the Chairperson or a Designated Member substantially in the form
presented to this meeting and attached hereto as Exhibit E, with such changes therein as shall be
approved by the Chairperson or Designated Member executing the same, with such execution to
constitute conclusive evidence of such officer’s approval and the District’s approval of any
changes therein from the form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement attached hereto. The
Continuing Disclosure Agreement is being executed by the District in order to assist the
Underwriter in complying with Rule 15c¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Section 8. Application of Bond Proceeds. The proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds
shall be applied in the manner required in the First Supplemental Indenture.

Section 9. Further Official Action; Ratification of Prior and Subsequent Acts.
The Chairperson, the Secretary and each member of the Board of Supervisors of the District and
any other proper official of the District are each hereby authorized and directed to execute and
deliver any and all documents and instruments (including, without limitation, any documents
required by the Trustee to evidence its rights and obligations with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds,
any documents required in connection with implementation of a book-entry system of registration,
and investment agreements relating to the investment of the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds
and any agreements in connection with maintaining the exclusion of interest on the Series 2025
Bonds from gross income of the holders thereof) and to do and cause to be done any and all acts
and things necessary or desirable for carrying out the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.
In the event that the Chairperson or the Secretary is unable to execute and deliver the documents
herein contemplated, such documents shall be executed and delivered by the respective designee
of such officer or official or any other duly authorized officer or official of the District. The
Secretary or any Assistant Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to apply and attest the
official seal of the District to any agreement or instrument authorized or approved herein that
requires such a seal and attestation. The Chairperson or any Designated Member may, among
other things, change the date of any document accompanying this Resolution as an exhibit, or the
series designation of the Series 2025 Bonds in the event of any delay in issuance of the Series 2025
Bonds. Execution by the Chairperson or a Designated Member of such document shall be deemed
to be conclusive evidence of approval of such change of date or series designation. All of the acts
and doings of such members of the Board, the officers of the District, and the agents and employees
of the District, which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of this Resolution and the
issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds, whether heretofore, or hereafter taken or done, shall be and are
hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 23



Section 10.  Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Resolution shall be held to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this Resolution
shall continue in full force and effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared that the
remainder of this Resolution would have been adopted despite the invalidity or ineffectiveness of
such section, paragraph, clause or provision.

Section 11.  Inconsistent Proceedings. All resolutions or proceedings, or parts thereof,
in conflict with the provisions hereof are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed or amended
to the extent of such inconsistency.

Section 12.  Public Meetings. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions
of the District concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution and the consummation of
the transactions contemplated by this Resolution were adopted in open meetings of the District,
and that all deliberations of the District that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open
to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

Section 13.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
adoption.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - SIGNATURE PAGE
FOLLOWS]

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 24



PASSED in Public Session of the Board of Supervisors of Lakefront Estates Community
Development District, this 22" day of October, 2025.

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Attest:

Secretary, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Board of Supervisors

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 25



SCHEDULE |

DESCRIPTION OF SERIES 2025 PROJECT

The Series 2025 Project includes, but is not limited to, the following improvements
identified for Phase 1A, comprising Assessment Area One:

Series 2025 Project
Improvement Estimated Coét
Wetland Basins $500,000
Earthwork 2,400,000
Roadways 3,959,216
Entrance Features 500,000
Water Supply Facilities 7,094,807
Sanitary Sewer Facilities 7,864,796
Stormwater Management Facilities 1,141,490
Electrical 878,377
Landscaping/Parks 750,000
Professional Fees 1,000,000
Contingency 2,596,369
TOTAL $28,560,055

a. The probable costs estimated herein do not include anticipated carrying cost, interest
reserves or other anticipated District expenditures that may be incurred.

b. The developer reserves the right to finance any of the improvements outlined above,
and have such improvements owned and maintained by a property owner’s or
homeowner’s association, in which case such items would not be part of the CIP.

c. The District may enter into an agreement with a third-party, or an applicable property
owner’s or homeowner’s association, to maintain any District-owned improvements,
subject to the approval of the District’s bond counsel.

d. Impact fee credits may be available from master roadway and utility improvements. The
developer and the District will enter into an acquisition agreement whereby the developer
may elect to keep any such credits, provided that consideration is provided to the District
in the form of improvements, land, a prepayment of debt assessments, or other
consideration.

Source: Lakefront Estates Community Development District First Supplemental Engineer’s
Report dated October 22, 2025, supplementing the Engineer’s Report dated December 20,
2023, each prepared by Steven L. Dobbs Engineering, LLC.

Schedule |

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 26



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 27



FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

between

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(GLADES COUNTY, FLORIDA)

and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

as Trustee

Dated as of | | 1, 2025

Authorizing and Securing
$[PAR AMOUNT]
LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2025
(ASSESSMENT AREA ONE)

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 28



SECTION 2.01.

SECTION 2.02.
SECTION 2.03.
SECTION 2.04.

SECTION 2.05.
SECTION 2.06.
SECTION 2.07.
SECTION 2.08.
SECTION 2.09.

SECTION 3.01.
SECTION 3.02.

SECTION 4.01.
SECTION 4.02.
SECTION 4.03.
SECTION 4.04.
SECTION 4.05.

SECTION 5.01.
SECTION 5.02.
SECTION 5.03.
SECTION 5.04.

Page
ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS
ARTICLE Il
THE SERIES 2025 BONDS
Amounts and Terms of Series 2025 Bonds; Issue of Series 2025
BONAS ... e 10
EXECULION ...ttt st reere e 10
AULNENTICALION.......eiiiiiie e 10
Purpose, Designation and Denominations of, and Interest Accruals
0N, the Series 2025 BONUS.........coicviiiiiiiiee et 10
Debt Service on the Series 2025 BONAS..........ccccoveveiieieeie e, 11
Disposition of Series 2025 Bond ProCeeds...........cccceoerenereninenvnienennns 12
Book-Entry Form of Series 2025 BONGS.........c.ccccevveieeieiieiieiecic e, 12
Appointment of Registrar and Paying Agent..........c.ccoceveierenenieneneninns 13
Conditions Precedent to Issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds..................... 13
ARTICLE I
REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2025 BONDS
Redemption Dates and PriCES .........coceiiiiiiiinininieere e 15
Notice 0f RedempPlion.........ccoveviiiiiicii e 17
ARTICLE IV
ESTABLISHMENT OF CERTAIN FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS;
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER; PREPAYMENTS;
REMOVAL OF SERIES 2025 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LIENS
Establishment of Certain Funds and AcCCoUNtS ..........ccccccvevvveeiieiiieevineenne. 18
Series 2025 REVENUE ACCOUNL .........ccverieeierieesieeiesee e eee e e neesee e eas 21
Power to Issue Series 2025 Bonds and Create Lien ..........cccccevvveeiieevnnnne 22
Series 2025 Project to Conform to Engineer’s Report.........cccoevevvenennen, 22
Prepayments; Removal of Series 2025 Special Assessment Liens........... 22
ARTICLE V
COVENANTS AND DESIGNATIONS OF THE ISSUER
Collection of Series 2025 Special ASSESSMENTS.........ccevvereerveseereereennnns 24
ContinUING DISCIOSUIE ......cueeiiiiiiiiee e 24
Investment of FuNds and ACCOUNTS..........cccvevveieerieeie e 24
AddItIoNal BONAS ......oooiviiiiccec s 24
(i)

ACTIVE 708147289v4

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page 29



SECTION 5.05. Acknowledgement Regarding the Moneys in the Series 2025
Acquisition and Construction Account Following an Event of

DETAUIL......oeieieee e 25

ARTICLE VI

THE TRUSTEE; THE PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR

SECTION 6.01. ACCEPTANCE OF TTUSE....evieiiiieieeee e 26
SECTION 6.02. TrUSEEE™S DULIES ..ot 26

ARTICLE VII

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 7.01. Interpretation of First Supplemental Trust Indenture ... 27
SECTION 7.02. AMENAMENTS ...ttt bbb ens 27
SECTION 7.03. COUNTEIPAITS ...t 27
SECTION 7.04. Appendices and EXNIDITS............cccoveiiiieicceecec e 27
SECTION 7.05. PayMENt DALES .......oeeiiiiiieieee e 27
SECTION 7.06. No Rights Conferred 0n Others .........ccccocveeieeie s, 27

EXHIBIT A DESCRIPTION OF SERIES 2025 PROJECT
EXHIBIT B FORM OF SERIES 2025 BOND
EXHIBITC FORMS OF REQUISITIONS

EXHIBITD FORM OF INVESTOR LETTER

(i)

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 30



THIS FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE (the “First Supplemental Trust
Indenture”), dated as of | | 1, 2025, between the LAKEFRONT ESTATES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (together with its successors and assigns, the
“Issuer” or the “District™), a local unit of special-purpose government organized and existing under
the laws of the State of Florida, and U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, a national banking association duly organized and existing under the laws of
the United States of America and having a designated corporate trust office in Fort Lauderdale,
Florida, as trustee (said national banking association and any bank or trust company becoming
successor trustee under this First Supplemental Trust Indenture being hereinafter referred to as the
“Trustee”);

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Issuer is a local unit of special purpose government duly organized and
existing under the provisions of the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980,
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Act”) created pursuant to Ordinance No. 2023-7
enacted by the Board of County Commissioners of Glades County, Florida, which became
effective on April 11, 2023 (the “Ordinance”), for the purposes of delivering community
development services and facilities to property to be served by the District; and

WHEREAS, the premises governed by the Issuer (the “District Lands”) (as further
described in Exhibit A attached to the Master Indenture (as defined herein)) currently consist of
approximately 525 acres of land located entirely within Glades County, Florida (the “County”)
and planned for 1,300 single-family residential units, 31,486 square feet of religious commercial
use and 792,119 square feet of retail and office commercial use; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has been created for the purpose of delivering certain community
development services and facilities for the benefit of the District Lands; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined to undertake, in four phases, the acquisition and/or
construction of public infrastructure improvements including, but not limited to stormwater
facilities, lift stations, water and sewer facilities, street lighting and electrical distribution
(undergrounding), onsite and offsite road construction, landscaping and entry features and signage,
and parks and recreational facilities for the special benefit of the District Lands (the “Project”), as
described in the Lakefront Estates Community Development District Engineer’s Report dated
December 20, 2023, as supplemented by the Lakefront Estates Community Development District
First Supplemental Engineer’s Report dated March 19, 2025, each prepared by Steven L. Dobbs
Engineering, LLC, and summarized in Exhibit A attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, the District obtained a final judgment in the Twentieth Judicial Circuit Court
in and for Charlotte, Collier, Glades, Hendry and Lee Counties, Florida on April 22, 2024,
validating Bonds (as defined herein) to be issued under the Master Indenture, from which no appeal
was filed; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has previously adopted Resolution No. 2023-30 on December 20,
2023, authorizing the issuance of not to exceed $132,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of its
Special Assessment Bonds (the “Bonds”) to finance all or a portion of the planning, design,

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 31



acquisition and construction costs of the Project pursuant to the Act for the special benefit of the
District Lands or portions thereof and approving the form of and authorizing the execution and
delivery of the Master Indenture; and

WHEREAS, Okeechobee Community Developers, LLC, a Florida limited liability
company, is the owner of the lands (the “Series 2025 Landowner”) planned for 196 single-family
residential units, 18,231 square feet of religious commercial use and 191,605 square feet of retail
and office commercial use (the “Assessment Area One”) and associated infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the Series 2025 Landowner will construct or cause the Issuer to construct all
or a portion of the public infrastructure necessary to serve the Assessment Area One (such public
infrastructure as described on Exhibit A attached hereto and collectively referred to as the “Series
2025 Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined to issue its first Series of Bonds, designated as the
“Lakefront Estates Community Development District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2025
(Assessment Area One)” (the “Series 2025 Bonds”), pursuant to that certain Master Trust
Indenture dated as of | | 1, 2025 (the “Master Indenture”) between the Issuer and the
Trustee, as supplemented by this First Supplemental Trust Indenture, (hereinafter sometimes
collectively referred to as the “Series 2025 Indenture”); and

WHEREAS, in the manner provided herein, the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds will
be used for the purposes of (i) providing funds to pay all or a portion of the costs of the planning,
financing, acquisition, construction, equipping and installation of the Series 2025 Project,
(i) funding a deposit to the Series 2025 Reserve Account in the amount of the initial Series 2025
Reserve Requirement, (iii) paying a portion of the interest coming due on the Series 2025 Bonds
and (iv) paying the costs of issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Series 2025 Bonds will be secured by a pledge of Series 2025 Pledged
Revenues (as herein defined) to the extent provided herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE
WITNESSETH, that to provide for the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds, the security and
payment of the principal or redemption price thereof (as the case may be) and interest thereon, the
rights of the Bondholders and the performance and observance of all of the covenants contained
herein and in said Series 2025 Bonds, and for and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein
contained and of the purchase and acceptance of the Series 2025 Bonds by the Holders thereof,
from time to time, and of the acceptance by the Trustee of the trusts hereby created, and intending
to be legally bound hereby, the Issuer does hereby assign, transfer, set over and pledge to U.S.
Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee, its successors in trust and its assigns
forever, and grants a lien on all of the right, title and interest of the Issuer in and to the Series 2025
Pledged Revenues as security for the payment of the principal, redemption or purchase price of (as
the case may be) and interest on the Series 2025 Bonds issued hereunder, all in the manner
hereinafter provided, and the Issuer further hereby agrees with and covenants unto the Trustee as
follows:

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 32



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same and, to the extent the same may be lawfully granted,
any other revenues, property, contracts or contract rights, accounts receivable, chattel paper,
instruments, general intangibles or other rights and the proceeds thereof, which may, by delivery,
assignment or otherwise, be subject to the lien created by the Series 2025 Indenture with respect
to the Series 2025 Bonds;

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, for the equal and ratable benefit and security of all
present and future Holders of the Series 2025 Bonds issued and to be issued under this First
Supplemental Trust Indenture, without preference, priority or distinction as to lien or otherwise
(except as otherwise specifically provided in this First Supplemental Trust Indenture) of any one
Series 2025 Bond over any other Series 2025 Bond, all as provided in the Series 2025 Indenture;

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the Issuer, its successors or assigns, shall well and truly
pay, or cause to be paid, or make due provision for the payment of the principal or redemption
price of the Series 2025 Bonds issued, secured and Outstanding hereunder and the interest due or
to become due thereon, at the times and in the manner mentioned in such Series 2025 Bonds and
the Series 2025 Indenture, according to the true intent and meaning thereof and hereof, and the
Issuer shall well and truly keep, perform and observe all the covenants and conditions pursuant to
the terms of the Series 2025 Indenture to be kept, performed and observed by it, and shall pay or
cause to be paid to the Trustee all sums of money due or to become due to it in accordance with
the terms and provisions hereof, then upon such final payments this First Supplemental Trust
Indenture and the rights hereby granted shall cease and terminate, otherwise this First
Supplemental Trust Indenture to be and remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

In this First Supplemental Trust Indenture capitalized terms used without definition shall
have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Master Indenture and, in addition to certain terms defined
in the recitals above, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below, unless
otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires:

“Acquisition Agreement” shall mean the certain Agreement by and between the District
and the Series 2025 Landowner regarding the acquisition of certain work product, improvements
and real property, dated [CLOSING DATE], 2025.

“Arbitrage Certificate” shall mean that certain Arbitrage and Tax Certificate, including
arbitrage rebate covenants, of the Issuer, dated [CLOSING DATE], 2025, relating to certain
restrictions on arbitrage under the Code with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds.

“Assessment Area One” shall mean the approximately 132.53 gross acres of land within
the District currently planned for a total of 196 residential units, approximately 18,231 square feet
of religious commercial use and approximately 191,605 square feet of retail and office commercial
use comprising Phase 1A of development.

“Assessment Resolutions” shall mean Resolution Nos. 2024-01, 2024-02, 2024-04 and
2025-[ ] of the Issuer adopted on February 21, 2024, February 21, 2024, March 27, 2024 and
[ |, 2025, respectively, as amended and supplemented from time to time.

3
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 33



“Authorized Denomination” shall mean, with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds, on the date
of issuance in the denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof; provided, however,
if any initial Beneficial Owner (as defined in the Master Indenture) does not purchase at least
$100,000 of the Series 2025 Bonds at the time of initial delivery of the Series 2025 Bonds, such
Beneficial Owner must either execute and deliver to the Issuer and the Underwriter on the date of
delivery of the Series 2025 Bonds the investor letter in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D or
otherwise establish to the satisfaction of the Underwriter that such Beneficial Owner is an
“accredited investor,” as described in Rule 501(a) under Regulation D of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended.

“Collateral Assignment” shall mean the agreement wherein certain rights and material
documents necessary to complete the development planned by the Series 2025 Landowner on the
District Lands are collaterally assigned to the District as security for the Series 2025 Landowner’s
obligation to pay the Series 2025 Special Assessments imposed against such lands which are
within the Assessment Area One subject to the Series 2025 Special Assessments and owned by
the Series 2025 Landowner from time to time.

“Completion Agreement” shall mean the Agreement between the District and Okeechobee
Community Developers, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, regarding the completion of
certain improvements, dated [CLOSING DATE], 2025.

“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” shall mean the Continuing Disclosure Agreement for
the benefit of the Beneficial Owners of the Series 2025 Bonds, dated [CLOSING DATE], 2025,
by and among the Issuer, the dissemination agent named therein, and the Series 2025 Landowner,
in connection with the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds.

“Declaration of Consent” shall mean the certain instrument executed by the Series 2025
Landowner declaring consent to the jurisdiction of the District and the imposition of the Series
2025 Special Assessments.

“District Manager” shall mean Special District Services, Inc., and its successors and
assigns.

“Engineer’s Report” shall mean the Lakefront Estates Community Development District
Engineer’s Report dated December 20, 2023, as supplemented by the Lakefront Estates
Community Development District First Supplemental Engineer’s Report dated March 19, 2025,
each prepared by Steven L. Dobbs Engineering, LLC.

“Interest Payment Date” shall mean May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing
November 1, 2025.

“Investment Securities” shall mean and include any of the following securities, if and to
the extent that such securities are legal investments for funds of the Issuer:

@) Government Obligations;

(b) money market deposit accounts, time deposits, and certificates of deposits
issued by commercial banks, savings and loan associations or mutual savings banks whose short-

4
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 34



term obligations are rated, at the time of purchase, in one of the two highest rating categories,
without regard to gradation, by Moody’s and S&P;

(© commercial paper (having maturities of not more than 270 days) rated, at
the time of purchase, in one of the two highest rating categories, without regard to gradation, by
Moody’s and S&P;

(d) obligations of any state of the United States or political subdivision thereof
or constituted authority thereof the interest on which is exempt from federal income taxation under
Section 103 of the Code and rated in one of the top two rating categories by both Moody’s and
S&P at the time of purchase;

(e) both (A) shares of a diversified open-end management investment company
(as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940) or a regulated investment company (as
defined in Section 851(a) of the Code) that is a money market fund that is rated in the highest
rating category for such funds by both Moody’s and S&P, and (B) shares of money market mutual
funds that invest only in Government Obligations and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations, which funds are rated in the highest categories for such funds by both Moody’s and
S&P at the time of purchase;

()] bonds, notes and other debt obligations of any corporation organized under
the laws of the United States, any state or organized territory of the United States or the District of
Columbia, if such obligations are rated in one of the three highest ratings by both Moody’s and
S&P or in one of the two highest categories by either S&P or Moody’s at the time of purchase;
and

(9) the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund as described in Florida
Statutes, Section 218.405 or the corresponding provisions of subsequent laws provided that such
fund, at the time of purchase, is rated at least “AA” by S&P (without regard to gradation) or at
least “Aa” by Moody’s (without regard to gradation).

Under all circumstances the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely that any
investment directed by the Issuer in writing is permitted under the Indenture, and a legal investment
for funds of the Issuer.

“Majority Holders” means the Beneficial Owners of more than fifty percent (50%) in
aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds.

“Master Indenture” shall mean the Master Trust Indenture, dated as of | | 1,
2025, by and between the Issuer and the Trustee, as supplemented and amended with respect to
matters pertaining solely to the Master Indenture or the Series 2025 Bonds (as opposed to
supplements or amendments relating to any Series of Bonds other than the Series 2025 Bonds as
specifically defined in this First Supplemental Trust Indenture).

“Paying Agent” shall mean U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, and its
successors and assigns as Paying Agent hereunder.

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 35



“Prepayment” shall mean the payment by any owner of property of the amount of Series
2025 Special Assessments encumbering its property, in whole or in part, prior to its scheduled due
date, including optional prepayments. The term “Prepayment” also means any proceeds received
as a result of accelerating and/or foreclosing the Series 2025 Special Assessments. “Prepayments”
shall include, without limitation, Series 2025 Prepayment Principal.

“Project” shall mean all of the public infrastructure deemed necessary for the development
of the District including, but not limited to, the Series 2025 Project.

“Quarterly Redemption Date” shall mean each February 1, May 1, August 1, and
November 1 of any calendar year.

“Redemption Price” shall mean the principal amount of any Series 2025 Bond plus the
applicable premium, if any payable upon redemption thereof pursuant to this First Supplemental
Trust Indenture.

“Registrar” shall mean U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association and its successors
and assigns as Registrar hereunder.

“Regular Record Date” shall mean the fifteenth day (whether or not a Business Day) of the
calendar month next preceding each Interest Payment Date or the date on which the principal of
the Series 2025 Bonds are to be paid.

“Resolution” shall mean, collectively, (i) Resolution No. 2023-30 of the Issuer adopted on
December 20, 2023, pursuant to which the Issuer authorized the issuance of not exceeding
$132,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its Bonds to finance the construction or acquisition
of the Project, and (ii) Resolution No. 2025-09 of the Issuer adopted on October 22, 2025, pursuant
to which the Issuer authorized, among other things, the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds to pay
all or a portion of the costs of the planning, financing, acquisition, construction, equipping and
installation of the Series 2025 Project, specifying the details of the Series 2025 Bonds and
awarding the Series 2025 Bonds to the purchasers of the Series 2025 Bonds.

“Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account” shall mean the Account established
pursuant to Section 4.01(a) of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account” shall mean the Account so designated,
established as a separate Account within the Bond Redemption Fund pursuant to Section 4.01(g)
of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Bonds” shall mean the $[PAR AMOUNT] aggregate principal amount of
Lakefront Estates Community Development District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2025
(Assessment Area One), to be issued as fully registered Bonds in accordance with the provisions
of the Master Indenture and this First Supplemental Trust Indenture, and secured and authorized
by the Master Indenture and this First Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Costs of Issuance Account” shall mean the Account so designated, established
as a separate Account within the Acquisition and Construction Fund pursuant to Section 4.01(a)
of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture.

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 36



“Series 2025 General Redemption Subaccount” shall mean the subaccount so designated,
established as a separate subaccount under the Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account pursuant to
Section 4.01(g) of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Indenture” shall mean collectively, the Master Indenture and this First
Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Interest Account” shall mean the Account so designated, established as a
separate Account within the Debt Service Fund pursuant to Section 4.01(d) of this First
Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Landowner” shall mean, Okeechobee Community Developers, LLC, a
Florida limited liability company, and any entity or entities which succeed to all or any part of the
interests and assume any or all of the responsibilities of said entities.

“Series 2025 Optional Redemption Subaccount” shall mean the subaccount so designated,
established as a separate subaccount under the Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account pursuant to
Section 4.01(g) of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Pledged Revenues” shall mean with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds (a) all
revenues received by the Issuer from Series 2025 Special Assessments levied and collected on the
assessable lands within Assessment Area One, benefitted by the Series 2025 Project, including,
without limitation, amounts received from any foreclosure proceeding for the enforcement of
collection of such Series 2025 Special Assessments or from the issuance and sale of tax certificates
with respect to such Series 2025 Special Assessments, and (b) all moneys on deposit in the Funds
and Accounts established under the Series 2025 Indenture created and established with respect to
or for the benefit of the Series 2025 Bonds; provided, however, that Series 2025 Pledged Revenues
shall not include (A) any moneys transferred to the Series 2025 Rebate Fund and investment
earnings thereon, (B) moneys on deposit in the Series 2025 Costs of Issuance Account of the
Acquisition and Construction Fund, and (C) "special assessments” levied and collected by the
Issuer under Section 190.022 of the Act for maintenance purposes or “maintenance assessments”
levied and collected by the Issuer under Section 190.021(3) of the Act (it being expressly
understood that the lien and pledge of the Series 2025 Indenture shall not apply to any of the
moneys described in the foregoing clauses (A), (B) and (C) of this proviso).

“Series 2025 Prepayment Principal” shall mean the portion of a Prepayment corresponding
to the principal amount of Series 2025 Special Assessments being prepaid pursuant to Section 4.05
of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture or Series 2025 Special Assessments collected as a result
of an acceleration of the Series 2025 Special Assessments pursuant to Section 170.10, Florida
Statutes, if such Series 2025 Special Assessments are being collected through a direct billing
method.

“Series 2025 Prepayment Subaccount” shall mean the subaccount so designated,
established as a separate subaccount under the Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account pursuant to
Section 4.01(g) of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Project” shall mean the public infrastructure described on Exhibit A attached
hereto benefitting Assessment Area One and referred to therein as “Phase 1A”.

7
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 37



“Series 2025 Rebate Account” shall mean the Account so designated, established as a
separate Account within the Rebate Fund pursuant to Section 4.01(j) of this First Supplemental
Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Reserve Account” shall mean the Account so designated, established as a
separate Account within the Debt Service Reserve Fund pursuant to Section 4.01(f) of this First
Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Reserve Requirement” or “Reserve Requirement” shall be an amount equal
to the maximum annual debt service on the Series 2025 Bonds as calculated from time to time.
For the purpose of calculating the Series 2025 Reserve Requirement, maximum annual debt
service shall be recalculated in connection with the extraordinary mandatory redemption described
in Sections 3.01(b)(i) and 3.01(b)(iii) hereof (but not upon the optional or mandatory sinking fund
redemption thereof) and such excess amount shall be released from the Series 2025 Reserve
Account and transferred to the Series 2025 General Redemption Subaccount or the Series 2025
Prepayment Subaccount as applicable, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 3.01(b)(i),
3.01(b)(iii), 4.01(f), 4.01(i) and 4.05(a) hereof. Amounts on deposit in the Series 2025 Reserve
Account may, upon final maturity or redemption of all Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds be used to
pay principal of and interest on the Series 2025 Bonds at that time. Initially, the Series 2025
Reserve Requirement shall be equal to $] ].

“Series 2025 Revenue Account” shall mean the Account so designated, established as a
separate Account within the Revenue Fund pursuant to Section 4.01(b) of this First Supplemental
Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account” shall mean the Account so designated, established as
a separate Account within the Debt Service Fund pursuant to Section 4.01(e) of this First
Supplemental Trust Indenture.

“Series 2025 Special Assessments” shall mean the Special Assessments levied on the
assessable lands within Assessment Area One as a result of the Issuer’s acquisition and/or
construction of the Series 2025 Project, corresponding in amount to the debt service on the Series
2025 Bonds and designated as such in the methodology report relating thereto.

“Substantially Absorbed” means the date at least 90% of the principal portion of the Series
2025 Special Assessments have been assigned to residential units within Assessment Area One
that have received certificates of occupancy. The District shall present the Trustee with a
certification that the Series 2025 Special Assessments are Substantially Absorbed and the Trustee
may rely conclusively upon such certification and shall have no duty to verify if the Series 2025
Special Assessments are Substantially Absorbed.

“True-Up Agreement” shall mean the Agreement dated [CLOSING DATE], 2025, by and
between the Issuer and the Series 2025 Landowner relating to the true-up of Series 2025 Special
Assessments.

“Underwriter” shall mean FMShonds, Inc., the underwriter of the Series 2025 Bonds.

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 38



The words “hereof,” “herein,” “hereto,” “hereby,” and “hereunder” (except in the form of
Series 2025 Bonds), refer to the entire Series 2025 Indenture.

Lt 11 LR 11 b2 11

Every “request,” “requisition,” “order,” “demand,” “application,” “notice,” “statement,”
“certificate,” “consent,” or similar action hereunder by the Issuer shall, unless the form or
execution thereof is otherwise specifically provided, be in writing signed by the Chair or Vice
Chair and the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer or the Secretary or Assistant Secretary or
Responsible Officer of the Issuer.

All words and terms importing the singular number shall, where the context requires, import the
plural number and vice versa.

[END OF ARTICLE I]

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 39



ARTICLE II
THE SERIES 2025 BONDS

SECTION 2.01. Amounts and Terms of Series 2025 Bonds; Issue of Series 2025
Bonds. No Series 2025 Bonds may be issued under this First Supplemental Trust Indenture except
in accordance with the provisions of this Article and Articles Il and 111 of the Master Indenture.

@ The total principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds that may be issued under
this First Supplemental Trust Indenture is expressly limited to $[PAR AMOUNT]. The Series
2025 Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from R-1 and upwards.

(b) Any and all Series 2025 Bonds shall be issued substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit B, with such appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are
permitted or required by the Series 2025 Indenture and with such additional changes as may be
necessary or appropriate to conform to the provisions of the Resolution. The Issuer shall issue the
Series 2025 Bonds upon execution of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture and satisfaction of
the requirements of Section 3.01 of the Master Indenture; and the Trustee shall, at the Issuer’s
request, authenticate such Series 2025 Bonds and deliver them as specified in the request.

SECTION 2.02. Execution. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be executed by the Issuer
as set forth in the Master Indenture.

SECTION 2.03. Authentication. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be authenticated as set
forth in the Master Indenture. No Series 2025 Bond shall be valid until the certificate of
authentication shall have been duly executed by the Trustee, as provided in the Master Indenture.

SECTION 2.04. Purpose, Designation and Denominations of, and Interest Accruals
on, the Series 2025 Bonds.

@) The Series 2025 Bonds are being issued hereunder in order to provide funds
for the purposes of (i) providing funds to pay all or a portion of the costs of the planning, financing,
acquisition, construction, equipping and installation of the Series 2025 Project, (ii) funding a
deposit to the Series 2025 Reserve Account in the amount of the initial Series 2025 Reserve
Requirement and (iii) paying the costs of issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds. The Series 2025
Bonds shall be designated “Lakefront Estates Community Development District Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2025,” and shall be issued as fully registered Bonds without coupons in
Authorized Denominations.

(b) The Series 2025 Bonds shall be dated as of the date of initial delivery.
Interest on the Series 2025 Bonds shall be payable on each Interest Payment Date to maturity or
prior redemption. Interest on the Series 2025 Bonds shall be payable from the most recent Interest
Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication thereof to which interest has been paid,
unless the date of authentication thereof is a May 1 or November 1 to which interest has been paid,
in which case from such date of authentication, or unless the date of authentication thereof is prior
to November 1, 2025, in which case from the date of initial delivery or unless the date of
authentication thereof is between a Record Date and the next succeeding Interest Payment Date,
in which case from such Interest Payment Date.

10
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 40



(©) Except as otherwise provided in Section 2.07 of this First Supplemental
Trust Indenture in connection with a book entry only system of registration of the Series 2025
Bonds, the principal or Redemption Price of the Series 2025 Bonds shall be payable in lawful
money of the United States of America at the designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent
upon presentation of such Series 2025 Bonds. Except as otherwise provided in Section 2.07 of
this First Supplemental Trust Indenture in connection with a book entry only system of registration
of the Series 2025 Bonds, the payment of interest on the Series 2025 Bonds shall be made on each
Interest Payment Date to the Registered Owners of the Series 2025 Bonds by check or draft drawn
on the Paying Agent and mailed on the applicable Interest Payment Date to each Registered Owner
as such Registered Owner appears on the Bond Register maintained by the Registrar as of the close
of business on the Regular Record Date, at his address as it appears on the Bond Register. Any
interest on any Series 2025 Bond which is payable, but is not punctually paid or provided for on
any Interest Payment Date (hereinafter called “Defaulted Interest™) shall be paid to the Registered
Owner in whose name the Series 2025 Bond is registered at the close of business on a Special
Record Date to be fixed by the Trustee, such date to be not more than fifteen (15) nor less than ten
(10) days prior to the date of proposed payment. The Trustee shall cause notice of the proposed
payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be sent by Electronic
Means or mailed, first-class, postage-prepaid, to each Registered Owner of record as of the fifth
(5th) day prior to such mailing, at his address as it appears in the Bond Register not less than ten
(10) days prior to such Special Record Date. The foregoing notwithstanding, any Registered
Owner of Series 2025 Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of at least $1,000,000 shall be
entitled to have interest paid by wire transfer to such Registered Owner to the bank account number
on file with the Paying Agent, upon requesting the same in a writing received by the Paying Agent
at least fifteen (15) days prior to the relevant Record Date, which writing shall specify the bank,
which shall be a bank within the continental United States, and bank account number to which
interest payments are to be wired. Any such request for interest payments by wire transfer shall
remain in effect until rescinded or changed, in a writing delivered by the Registered Owner to the
Paying Agent, and any such rescission or change of wire transfer instructions must be received by
the Paying Agent at least fifteen (15) days prior to the relevant Record Date.

SECTION 2.05. Debt Service on the Series 2025 Bonds.

@ The Series 2025 Bonds will mature on May 1 in the years and in the
principal amounts, and bear interest at the rates as set forth below, subject to the right of prior
redemption in accordance with their terms.

Year Amount Interest Rate

(b) Interest on the Series 2025 Bonds will be computed in all cases on the basis
of a 360 day year of twelve 30 day months. Interest on overdue principal and, to the extent lawful,
on overdue interest will be payable at the numerical rate of interest borne by the Series 2025 Bonds
on the day before the default occurred.

11
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 41



SECTION 2.06. Disposition of Series 2025 Bond Proceeds. From the net proceeds
of the Series 2025 Bonds received by the Trustee in the amount of $] | (par amount of
$[PAR AMOUNT].00 less original issue discount of $| Jand less underwriter’s discount
of § |, which is retained by the underwriter of the Series 2025 Bonds):

@) 3 |, which is an amount equal to the initial Series 2025 Reserve
Requirement, shall be deposited in the Series 2025 Reserve Account of the Debt Service Reserve
Fund;

(b) 3 |, shall be deposited into the Series 2025 Interest Account and
applied to pay interest coming due on the Series 2025 Bonds through November 1, 2025;

(©) | |, shall be deposited into the Series 2025 Costs of Issuance
Account of the Acquisition and Construction Fund for payment of the costs of issuing the Series
2025 Bonds; and

(d) 3 |, representing the balance of the net proceeds of the Series
2025 Bonds, shall be deposited into the Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account of the
Acquisition and Construction Fund, which the Issuer shall cause to be applied to the payment of
costs of the Series 2025 Project, subject to and in accordance with Section 4.01(a) hereof, Article
V of the Master Indenture and the terms of the Acquisition Agreement.

SECTION 2.07. Book-Entry Form of Series 2025 Bonds. The Series 2025 Bonds
shall be issued as one fully registered bond for each maturity of Series 2025 Bonds and deposited
with The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), which is responsible for establishing and
maintaining records of ownership for its participants.

As long as the Series 2025 Bonds are held in book-entry-only form, Cede & Co. shall be
considered the Registered Owner for all purposes hereof and in the Master Indenture. The Series
2025 Bonds shall not be required to be presented for payment. DTC shall be responsible for
maintaining a book-entry-only system for recording the ownership interest of its participants
(“Direct Participants™) and other institutions that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). The Direct
Participants and Indirect Participants will be responsible for maintaining records with respect to
the beneficial ownership interests of individual purchasers of the Series 2025 Bonds (“Beneficial
Owners”).

Principal and interest on the Series 2025 Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. prior
to and at maturity shall be payable directly to Cede & Co. in care of DTC. Disbursal of such
amounts to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC. Payments by Direct Participants
to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners
shall be the responsibility of Direct Participants and Indirect Participants and not of DTC, the
Trustee or the Issuer.

Individuals may purchase beneficial interests in Authorized Denominations in book-entry-
only form, without certificated Series 2025 Bonds, through Direct Participants and Indirect
Participants.

12
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 42



During the period for which Cede & Co. is Registered Owner of the Series 2025 Bonds,
any notices to be provided to any Beneficial Owner will be provided to Cede & Co. DTC shall be
responsible for notices to Direct Participants and Direct Participants shall be responsible for
notices to Indirect Participants, and Direct Participants and Indirect Participants shall be
responsible for notices to Beneficial Owners.

The Issuer and the Trustee, if appropriate, shall enter into a blanket letter of representations
with DTC providing for such book-entry-only system. Such agreement may be terminated at any
time by either DTC or the Issuer in accordance with the procedures of DTC. In the event of such
termination, the Issuer shall select another securities depository and in that event, all references
herein to DTC or Cede & Co., shall be deemed to be for reference to such successor. If the Issuer
does not replace DTC, the Trustee will register and deliver to the Beneficial Owners replacement
Series 2025 Bonds in the form of fully registered Series 2025 Bonds in accordance with the
instructions from Cede & Co.

In the event DTC, any successor of DTC or the Issuer, but only in accordance with the
procedures of DTC, elects to discontinue the book-entry only system, the Trustee shall deliver
bond certificates in accordance with the instructions from DTC or its successor and after such time
Series 2025 Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of Series 2025
Bonds in other Authorized Denominations upon surrender thereof at the designated corporate trust
office of the Trustee.

SECTION 2.08. Appointment of Registrar and Paying Agent. The Issuer shall keep,
at the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar, books (the “Bond Register”) for the
registration, transfer and exchange of the Series 2025 Bonds, and hereby appoints U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, as its Registrar to keep such books and make such registrations,
transfers, and exchanges as required hereby. U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association
hereby accepts its appointment as Registrar and its duties and responsibilities as Registrar
hereunder. Registrations, transfers and exchanges shall be without charge to the Bondholder
requesting such registration, transfer or exchange, but such Bondholder shall pay any taxes or other
governmental charges on all registrations, transfers and exchanges.

The Issuer hereby appoints U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association as Paying
Agent for the Series 2025 Bonds. U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association hereby accepts
its appointment as Paying Agent and its duties and responsibilities as Paying Agent hereunder.

SECTION 2.09. Conditions Precedent to Issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds. In
addition to complying with the requirements set forth in the Master Indenture in connection with
the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds, all the Series 2025 Bonds shall be executed by the Issuer
for delivery to the Trustee and thereupon shall be authenticated by the Trustee and delivered to the
Issuer or upon its order, but only upon the further receipt by the Trustee of:

@ Certified copies of the Assessment Resolutions;

(b) A copy of the executed Master Indenture and an executed copy of this First
Supplemental Trust Indenture;

(c) Customary closing opinions of District Counsel and Bond Counsel,

13
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 43



(d) A certificate of an authorized officer of the Issuer to the effect that, upon
the authentication and delivery of the Series 2025 Bonds, the Issuer will not be in default in the
performance of the terms and provisions of the Master Indenture or this First Supplemental Trust
Indenture;

(e) Copies of executed investor letters in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D
if such investor letter is required, as determined by the Underwriter; and

()] Executed copies of the Arbitrage Certificate, the True-Up Agreement, the
Acquisition Agreement, Declaration of Consent, the Completion Agreement, the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement and the Collateral Assignment.

Payment to the Trustee of the net proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds shall be conclusive
evidence that the foregoing conditions have been fulfilled to the satisfaction of the Issuer and the
Underwriter.

[END OF ARTICLE I1]

14
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 44



ARTICLE I
REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2025 BONDS

SECTION 3.01. Redemption Dates and Prices. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be
subject to redemption at the times and in the manner provided in Article VIII of the Master
Indenture and in this Article I111. All payments of the Redemption Price of the Series 2025 Bonds
shall be made on the dates hereinafter required. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 3.01,
if less than all the Series 2025 Bonds of a maturity are to be redeemed pursuant to an extraordinary
mandatory redemption, the Trustee shall select the Series 2025 Bonds or portions of the Series
2025 Bonds to be redeemed by lot. Partial redemptions of Series 2025 Bonds shall, to the extent
possible, be made in such a manner that the remaining Series 2025 Bonds held by each Bondholder
shall be in Authorized Denominations, except for the last remaining Series 2025 Bond.

The Series 2025 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity in the amounts, at the
times and in the manner provided below. All payments of the Redemption Price of the Series 2025
Bonds shall be made on the dates specified below. Upon any redemption of Series 2025 Bonds
other than in accordance with scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemptions, the Issuer shall
cause to be recalculated and delivered to the Trustee revised mandatory sinking fund redemption
amounts recalculated so as to amortize the Outstanding principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds in
substantially equal annual installments of principal and interest (subject to rounding to Authorized
Denominations of principal) over the remaining term of the Series 2025 Bonds. The mandatory
sinking fund redemption amounts as so recalculated shall not result in an increase in the aggregate
of the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts for all Series 2025 Bonds in any year. In the
event of a redemption or purchase occurring less than forty-five (45) days prior to a date on which
a mandatory sinking fund redemption amount is due, the foregoing recalculation shall not be made
to the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts due in the year in which such redemption
occurs, but shall be made to the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts for the immediately
succeeding and subsequent years.

@) Optional Redemption. The Series 2025 Bonds maturing after May 1,
20[ ] may, at the option of the Issuer be called for redemption prior to maturity as a whole or in
part, at any time, on or after May 1, 20[___] (less than all Series 2025 Bonds of a maturity to be
selected by lot), at a Redemption Price equal to the principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds to be
redeemed, plus accrued interest from the most recent Interest Payment Date through which interest
has been paid to the redemption date from moneys on deposit in the Series 2025 Optional
Redemption Subaccount of the Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account. If such optional
redemption shall be in part, the Issuer shall select such principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds to
be optionally redeemed from each maturity so that debt service on the remaining Outstanding
Series 2025 Bonds is substantially level.

(b) Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption in Whole or in Part. The Series 2025
Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to maturity by the Issuer in whole
or in part, on any date (other than in the case of clause (i) below, which extraordinary mandatory
redemption in part must occur on a Quarterly Redemption Date), at a Redemption Price equal to
100% of the principal amount of the Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed, plus interest accrued to
the redemption date, as follows:

15
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 45



Q) from Series 2025 Prepayment Principal deposited into the Series
2025 Prepayment Subaccount of the Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account following the
Prepayment in whole or in part of Series 2025 Special Assessments on any assessable
property within Assessment Area One in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.05(a)
of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture, together with any excess moneys transferred by
the Trustee from the Series 2025 Reserve Account to the Series 2025 Prepayment
Subaccount as a result of such Prepayment and pursuant to Sections 4.01(f) and 4.05(a) of
this First Supplemental Trust Indenture. 1f such redemption shall be in part, the Issuer shall
select such principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed from each maturity so
that debt service on the remaining Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds is substantially level.

(i) from moneys, if any, on deposit in the Funds, Accounts and
subaccounts held by the Trustee hereunder (other than the Series 2025 Rebate Fund and
the Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account) sufficient to pay and redeem all
Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds and accrued interest thereon to the redemption date or dates
in addition to all amounts owed to Persons under the Master Indenture and this First
Supplemental Trust Indenture.

(iii)  upon the Completion Date, from any funds remaining on deposit in
the Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account in accordance with the provisions
of Section 4.01(a) hereof, not otherwise reserved to complete the Series 2025 Project and
transferred to the Series 2025 General Redemption Subaccount of the Series 2025 Bond
Redemption Account, together with moneys deposited therein in accordance with the
provisions of Section 4.01(a) hereof, as a result of the reduction of the Series 2025 Reserve
Requirement.. If such redemption shall be in part, the Issuer shall select such principal
amount of Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed from each maturity so that debt service on
the remaining Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds is substantially level.

(c) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series 2025 Bonds maturing on
May 1, 20[ ] are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption from the moneys on deposit in
the Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account on May 1 in the years and in the mandatory sinking fund
redemption amounts set forth below at a Redemption Price of 100% of their principal amount plus
accrued interest to the date of redemption.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Mandatory Sinking Fund
Year Redemption Amount Year Redemption Amount

“ Maturity.

The Series 2025 Bonds maturing on May 1, 20[ ] are subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption from the moneys on deposit in the Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account on May 1 in the
years and in the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts set forth below at a Redemption
Price of 100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

16
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 46



Mandatory Sinking Fund Mandatory Sinking Fund
Year Redemption Amount Year Redemption Amount

* Maturity.

The Series 2025 Bonds maturing on May 1, 2053 are subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption from the moneys on deposit in the Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account on May 1 in the
years and in the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts set forth below at a Redemption
Price of 100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Mandatory Sinking Fund
Year Redemption Amount Year Redemption Amount

“ Maturity.

SECTION 3.02. Notice of Redemption. When required to redeem Series 2025
Bonds under any provision of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture or directed to redeem Series
2025 Bonds by the Issuer, the Trustee shall give or cause to be given to Registered Owners of the
Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed, notice of the redemption, as set forth in Article VIII of the
Master Indenture.

[END OF ARTICLE I11]

17
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 47



ARTICLE IV
ESTABLISHMENT OF CERTAIN FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS;
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER; PREPAYMENTS;
REMOVAL OF SERIES 2025 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LIENS

SECTION 4.01. Establishment of Certain Funds and Accounts. (a) The  Trustee
shall establish a separate Account within the Acquisition and Construction Fund designated as the
“Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account.” Net proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds shall
initially be deposited into the Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account in the amount set
forth in Section 2.06 of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture. Funds on deposit in the Series
2025 Acquisition and Construction Account shall only be requested by the Issuer to be applied to
the Costs of the Series 2025 Project, subject to Section 4.01(f) herein.

Following the Completion Date for the Series 2025 Project, all moneys remaining in the
Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account, not otherwise reserved to complete the Series
2025 Project shall be transferred to the Series 2025 General Redemption Subaccount of the Series
2025 Bond Redemption Account, as directed in writing by the District Manager, on behalf of the
Issuer to the Trustee to be applied as provided in Section 3.01(b)(iii). The Trustee shall not be
responsible for determining the amounts in the Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account
and subaccounts allocable to the Series 2025 Project or any transfers made to such Accounts in
accordance with direction from the District Manager.

The Trustee shall make no such transfers from the Series 2025 Acquisition and
Construction Account to the Series 2025 General Redemption Subaccount if an Event of Default
exists with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds of which the Trustee has actual knowledge as
described in Section 11.06 of the Master Indenture. Except as provided in Section 5.05 and Section
3.01(b)(iii) hereof, only upon presentment to the Trustee of a properly signed requisition in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, shall the Trustee withdraw moneys from the
Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account or subaccounts therein. After no funds remain
in the Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account, such Account shall be closed.

Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Trustee shall establish a separate Account within the
Acquisition and Construction Fund designated as the “Series 2025 Costs of Issuance Account.”
Net proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds shall be deposited into the Series 2025 Costs of Issuance
Account in the amount set forth in Section 2.06 of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture. Upon
presentment to the Trustee of a properly signed requisition in substantially the form attached hereto
as Exhibit C, the Trustee shall withdraw moneys from the Series 2025 Costs of Issuance Account
to pay the costs of issuing the Series 2025 Bonds. Six months after the issuance of the Series 2025
Bonds, any moneys remaining in the Series 2025 Costs of Issuance Account in excess of the
amounts requested to be disbursed by the Issuer shall be deposited into the Series 2025 Interest
Account and the Series 2025 Costs of Issuance Account shall be closed. Any deficiency in the
amount allocated to pay the cost of issuing the Series 2025 Bonds shall be paid from excess Series
2025 Pledged Revenues on deposit in the Series 2025 Revenue Account as provided in Section
4.02. After no funds remain therein, the Series 2025 Costs of Issuance Account shall be closed.

(b) Pursuant to Section 6.03 of the Master Indenture, the Trustee shall establish
a separate Account within the Revenue Fund designated as the “Series 2025 Revenue Account.”

18
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 48



Series 2025 Special Assessments (except for Prepayments of Series 2025 Special Assessments
which shall be identified as such by the Issuer to the Trustee and deposited in the Series 2025
Prepayment Subaccount) shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Series 2025 Revenue Account
which shall be applied as set forth in Section 6.03 of the Master Indenture and Section 4.02 of this
First Supplemental Trust Indenture. The Trustee may conclusively rely that unless expressly
indicated in writing by the District as a Prepayment upon deposit thereof with the Trustee,
payments of Series 2025 Special Assessments otherwise received by the Trustee are to be
deposited into the Series 2025 Revenue Account.

(c) [RESERVED].

(d) Pursuant to Section 6.04 of the Master Indenture and Section 4.02 of this
First Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Trustee shall establish a separate Account within the Debt
Service Fund designated as the “Series 2025 Interest Account.” Moneys deposited into the Series
2025 Interest Account pursuant to Section 6.04 of the Master Indenture and Section 4.02 of this
First Supplemental Trust Indenture, shall be applied for the purposes provided therein and used to
pay interest on the Series 2025 Bonds.

(e) Pursuant to Section 6.04 of the Master Indenture, the Trustee shall establish
a separate Account within the Debt Service Fund designated as the “Series 2025 Sinking Fund
Account.” Moneys shall be deposited into the Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account as provided in
Section 6.04 of the Master Indenture and Section 4.02 of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture,
and applied for the purposes provided therein and in Section 3.01(c) of this First Supplemental
Trust Indenture.

() Pursuant to Section 6.05 of the Master Indenture, the Trustee shall establish
a separate Account within the Debt Service Reserve Fund designated as the “Series 2025 Reserve
Account.” Net proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds shall be deposited into the Series 2025 Reserve
Account in the amount set forth in Section 2.06 of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture, and
such moneys, together with any other moneys deposited into the Series 2025 Reserve Account
shall be applied for the purposes provided in the Master Indenture Section 4.01(a) and in this
Section 4.01(f) and Section 4.05 of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture. Notwithstanding any
provisions in the Master Indenture to the contrary, the Issuer covenants not to substitute the cash
and Investment Securities on deposit in the Series 2025 Reserve Account with a Debt Service
Reserve Insurance Policy or a Debt Service Reserve Letter of Credit. Except as provided in the
next paragraph, all investment earnings on moneys in the Series 2025 Reserve Account shall
remain on deposit therein.

On each March 15 and September 15 (or, if such date is not a Business Day, on the
Business Day next preceding such day), the Trustee shall determine the amount on deposit in the
Series 2025 Reserve Account and transfer any excess therein above the Series 2025 Reserve
Requirement resulting from investment earnings to the Series 2025 Revenue Account in
accordance with Section 4.02 hereof.

Subject to the provisions of Section 4.05 hereof, on any date the Issuer receives
notice from the District Manager that a landowner wishes to prepay its Series 2025 Special
Assessments relating to the benefited property of such landowner, or as a result of a mandatory

19
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 49



true-up payment, the Issuer shall, or cause the District Manager, on behalf of the Issuer, to calculate
the principal amount of such Prepayment taking into account a credit against the amount of Series
2025 Prepayment Principal due by the amount of money in the Series 2025 Reserve Account that
will exceed the Series 2025 Reserve Requirement for the Series 2025 Bonds, taking into account
the proposed Prepayment. Such excess shall be transferred to the Series 2025 Prepayment
Subaccount of the Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account, as a result of such Prepayment. The
District Manager, on behalf of the Issuer, shall make such calculation within ten (10) Business
Days after such Prepayment and shall instruct the Trustee in writing to transfer such amount of
credit given to the respective landowner from the Series 2025 Reserve Account to the Series 2025
Prepayment Subaccount of the Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account to be used for the
extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Series 2025 Bonds in accordance with Section
3.01(b)(i) hereof. The Trustee is authorized to make such transfers and has no duty to verify such
calculations. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, amounts on deposit in the Series 2025 Reserve
Account shall be transferred by the Trustee, in the amounts directed in writing by the Majority
Holders of the Series 2025 Bonds to the Series 2025 General Redemption Subaccount, if as a result
of the application of Article X of the Master Indenture, the proceeds received from lands sold
subject to the Series 2025 Special Assessments and applied to redeem a portion of the Series 2025
Bonds is less than the principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds indebtedness attributable to such
lands.

In addition, and together with the moneys transferred from the Series 2025 Reserve
Account pursuant to this paragraph, if the amount on deposit in the Series 2025 General
Redemption Subaccount, is not sufficient to redeem a principal amount of the Series 2025 Bonds
in an Authorized Denomination, the Trustee is authorized to withdraw amounts from the Series
2025 Revenue Account to round up the amount in the Series 2025 General Redemption
Subaccount to the nearest Authorized Denomination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no transfers
from the Series 2025 Revenue Account shall be made to pay interest on and/or principal of the
Series 2025 Bonds for the redemption pursuant to Section 3.01(b)(iii) if as a result the deposits
required under Section 4.02 FIRST through FIFTH cannot be made in full.

(9) Pursuant to Section 6.06 of the Master Indenture, the Trustee shall establish
a separate Series Bond Redemption Account within the Bond Redemption Fund designated as the
“Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account” and within such Account, a “Series 2025 General
Redemption Subaccount,” a “Series 2025 Optional Redemption Subaccount,” and a “Series 2025
Prepayment Subaccount.” Except as otherwise provided in this First Supplemental Trust Indenture
regarding Prepayments or in connection with the optional redemption of the Series 2025 Bonds,
moneys to be deposited into the Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account as provided in Section
6.06 of the Master Indenture, shall be deposited to the Series 2025 General Redemption
Subaccount.

(h) Moneys that are deposited into the Series 2025 General Redemption
Subaccount (including all earnings on investments held therein) shall be used to call for the
extraordinary mandatory redemption (i) in whole, pursuant to Section 3.01(b)(ii) hereof, the
Outstanding amount of Series 2025 Bonds, or (ii) in whole or in part, pursuant to Section
3.01(b)(iii) hereof.

20
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 50



Q) Moneys in the Series 2025 Prepayment Subaccount (including all earnings
on investments held in such Series 2025 Prepayment Subaccount) shall be accumulated therein to
be used to call for redemption pursuant to Section 3.01(b)(i) hereof an amount of Series 2025
Bonds equal to the amount of money transferred to the Series 2025 Prepayment Subaccount of the
Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account for the purpose of such extraordinary mandatory
redemption on the dates and at the price provided in such Section 3.01(b)(i) hereof. In addition,
and together with the moneys transferred from the Series 2025 Reserve Account pursuant to
paragraph (f) above, if the amount on deposit in the Series 2025 Prepayment Subaccount is not
sufficient to redeem a principal amount of the Series 2025 Bonds in an Authorized Denomination,
the Trustee upon written direction from the Issuer, shall be authorized to withdraw amounts from
the Series 2025 Revenue Account to deposit to the Series 2025 Prepayment Subaccount to round-
up the amount to the nearest Authorized Denomination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no
transfers from the Series 2025 Revenue Account shall be directed by the Issuer to pay interest on
and/or principal of the Series 2025 Bonds for the redemption pursuant to Section 3.01(b)(i) if as a
result the deposits required under Section 4.02 FIRST through FIFTH cannot be made in full.

() The Issuer hereby directs the Trustee to establish a separate Account in the
Rebate Fund designated as the “Series 2025 Rebate Account.” Moneys shall be deposited into the
Series 2025 Rebate Account, as provided in the Arbitrage Certificate and applied for the purposes
provided therein.

(k) Moneys on deposit in the Series 2025 Optional Redemption Subaccount
shall be used to optionally redeem all or a portion of the Series 2025 Bonds pursuant to Section
3.01(a) hereof.

SECTION 4.02. Series 2025 Revenue Account. The Trustee shall transfer from
amounts on deposit in the Series 2025 Revenue Account to the Funds and Accounts designated
below, the following amounts, at the following times and in the following order of priority:

FIRST, upon receipt but no later than the Business Day next preceding each Interest
Payment Date, commencing May 1, 2026, to the Series 2025 Interest Account of the Debt
Service Fund, an amount equal to the interest on the Series 2025 Bonds becoming due on
the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, less any amount on deposit in the Series 2025
Interest Account not previously credited,;

SECOND, no later than the Business Day next preceding each May 1, commencing
May 1, 2026, to the Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account, an amount equal to the principal
amount of Series 2025 Bonds subject to sinking fund redemption or maturing principal on
such May 1, less any amount on deposit in the Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account not
previously credited;

THIRD, upon receipt but no later than the Business Day next preceding each
Interest Payment Date while Series 2025 Bonds remain Outstanding, to the Series 2025
Reserve Account, an amount equal to the amount, if any, which is necessary to make the
amount on deposit therein equal to the Reserve Requirement for the Series 2025 Bonds;

21
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 51



FOURTH, notwithstanding the foregoing, at any time the Series 2025 Bonds are
subject to redemption on a date which is not a May 1 or November 1 Interest Payment
Date, the Trustee shall be authorized to transfer to the Series 2025 Interest Account, the
amount necessary to pay interest on the Series 2025 Bonds subject to redemption on such
date; and

FIFTH, subject to the foregoing paragraphs, the balance of any moneys remaining
after making the foregoing deposits shall be first deposited into the Series 2025 Costs of
Issuance Account upon the written request of the Issuer to cover any deficiencies in the
amount allocated to pay the cost of issuing the Series 2025 Bonds and next, any balance in
the Series 2025 Revenue Account shall remain on deposit in such Series 2025 Revenue
Account, unless needed to be transferred to the Series 2025 Prepayment Subaccount for
the purposes of rounding the principal amount of a Series 2025 Bond subject to
extraordinary mandatory redemption pursuant to Sections 4.01(f) or 4.01(i) hereof to an
Authorized Denomination, or unless pursuant to the Arbitrage Certificate, it is necessary
to make a deposit into the Series 2025 Rebate Fund, in which case, the Issuer shall direct
the Trustee to make such deposit thereto.

In addition to a redemption of Series 2025 Bonds from Prepayments on deposit in the Series
2025 Prepayment Subaccount, the Trustee is further authorized, upon written direction from the
Issuer, to transfer from the Series 2025 Revenue Account to the Series 2025 General Redemption
Subaccount sufficient funds to cause the redemption of the next closest Authorized Denomination
of Series 2025 Bonds, as provided in Section 4.01(f) hereof.

SECTION 4.03. Power to Issue Series 2025 Bonds and Create Lien. The Issuer is
duly authorized under the Act and all applicable laws of the State to issue the Series 2025 Bonds,
to execute and deliver the Series 2025 Indenture and to pledge the Series 2025 Pledged Revenues
for the benefit of the Series 2025 Bonds to the extent set forth herein. The Series 2025 Pledged
Revenues are not and shall not be subject to any other lien senior to or on a parity with the lien
created in favor of the Series 2025 Bonds, except as otherwise permitted under the Master
Indenture and in Section 5.04 hereof. The Series 2025 Bonds and the provisions of the Series 2025
Indenture are and will be valid and legally enforceable obligations of the Issuer in accordance with
their respective terms. The Issuer shall, at all times, to the extent permitted by law and without
waiving any sovereign immunity or limitation of liability afforded by Section 768.28, Florida
Statutes, or other law, defend, preserve and protect the pledge created by the Series 2025 Indenture
and all the rights of the Holders of the Series 2025 Bonds under the Series 2025 Indenture against
all claims and demands of all persons whomsoever.

SECTION 4.04. Series 2025 Project to Conform to Engineer’s Report.
Simultaneously with the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds, the Issuer will promptly proceed to
construct and/or acquire the Series 2025 Project, as described in Exhibit A hereto and in the
Engineer’s Report relating thereto, all pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Acquisition
Agreement.

SECTION 4.05. Prepayments; Removal of Series 2025 Special Assessment Liens.

22
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 52



@) At any time any owner of property subject to the Series 2025 Special
Assessments may, at its option, or as a result of acceleration of the Series 2025 Special
Assessments because of non-payment thereof, shall, or by operation of law, require the Issuer to
reduce or release and extinguish the lien upon its property by virtue of the levy of the Series 2025
Special Assessments by paying or causing there to be paid, to the Issuer all or a portion of the
Series 2025 Special Assessment, which shall constitute Series 2025 Prepayment Principal, plus,
except as provided below, accrued interest to the next succeeding Quarterly Redemption Date (or
the first succeeding Quarterly Redemption Date that is at least forty-five (45) days after such
Prepayment, if such Prepayment is made within forty-five (45) calendar days before the next
succeeding Quarterly Redemption Date, as the case may be), attributable to the property subject
to Series 2025 Special Assessments owned by such owner. To the extent that such Prepayments
are to be used to redeem Series 2025 Bonds pursuant to Section 3.01(b)(i) hereof, in the event the
amount on deposit in the Series 2025 Reserve Account will exceed the Series 2025 Reserve
Requirement for the Series 2025 Bonds as a result of a Prepayment in accordance with this Section
4.05(a) and the resulting extraordinary mandatory redemption in accordance with Section
3.01(b)(i) of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture of Series 2025 Bonds, the excess amount shall
be transferred from the Series 2025 Reserve Account to the Series 2025 Prepayment Subaccount,
as a credit against the Series 2025 Prepayment Principal otherwise required to be paid by the owner
of such lot or parcel, upon written instructions of the Issuer to the Trustee together with a certificate
of a Responsible Officer of the Issuer, upon which the Trustee may conclusively rely, stating that,
after giving effect to such transfers sufficient moneys will be on deposit in the Series 2025 Reserve
Account to equal or exceed the Series 2025 Reserve Requirement.

(b) Upon receipt of Series 2025 Prepayment Principal as described in paragraph
(a) above, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth therein, the Issuer shall immediately
pay the amount so received to the Trustee, and the Issuer shall take such action as is necessary to
record in the official improvement lien book of the District that the Series 2025 Special Assessment
has been paid in whole or in part and that such Series 2025 Special Assessment lien is thereby
reduced, or released and extinguished, as the case may be.

The Trustee may conclusively rely on the Issuer’s determination of what moneys
constitute Prepayments. The Trustee shall calculate the amount available for the extraordinary
mandatory redemption of the applicable Series 2025 Bonds pursuant to Section 3.01(b)(i) forty-
five (45) days prior to each Quarterly Redemption Date.

[END OF ARTICLE 1V]

23
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 53



ARTICLE V
COVENANTS AND DESIGNATIONS OF THE ISSUER

SECTION 5.01. Collection of Series 2025 Special Assessments. The Series 2025
Special Assessments levied for each full year on platted lots shall be collected pursuant to the
uniform method provided for in Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635 Florida Statutes, (the “Uniform
Method”) unless the District determines that it is in its best interests to collect directly. The Series
2025 Special Assessments levied on unplatted lots or lands shall be billed and collected directly
by the District pursuant to the Act and Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and not pursuant to
the Uniform Method unless the District determines that it is in its best interests to do so. Prior to
an Event of Default, the election to collect and enforce Series 2025 Special Assessments in any
year pursuant to any one method shall not, to the extent permitted by law, preclude the District
from electing to collect and enforce Series 2025 Special Assessments pursuant to any other method
permitted by law in any subsequent year. Following an Event of Default, Series 2025 Special
Assessments levied on platted lots shall be collected pursuant to the Uniform Method and Series
2025 Special Assessments levied on unplatted lots or lands shall be billed and collected directly
by the District pursuant to the Act and Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and not pursuant to
the Uniform Method, in each case unless the Trustee, acting at the direction of the Majority Holders
of the Series 2025 Bonds Outstanding, provides written consent/direction to a different method of
collection. All Series 2025 Special Assessments that are billed and collected directly by the
District and not via the Uniform Method shall be due and payable by the landowner no later than
thirty (30) days prior to each Interest Payment Date; provided, however, that such Series 2025
Special Assessments shall not be deemed to be delinquent unless and until they are not paid by the
applicable Interest Payment Date with respect to which they have been billed. The applicable
assessment methodology report shall not be materially amended without the written consent of the
Majority Holders, which consent shall be deemed given if no response is received within sixty (60)
days of a written request therefor.

SECTION 5.02. Continuing Disclosure. Contemporaneously with the execution and
delivery hereof, the Issuer and the Series 2025 Landowner have executed and delivered a
Continuing Disclosure Agreement in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with the
requirements of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. The
Issuer covenants and agrees to comply with the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement applicable to it; however, as set forth therein, failure to so comply shall not constitute
an Event of Default hereunder, but shall instead be enforceable by mandamus or any other means
of specific performance.

SECTION 5.03. Investment of Funds and Accounts. The provisions of Section 7.02
of the Master Indenture shall apply to the investment and reinvestment of moneys in the Funds,
Accounts and subaccounts therein created hereunder.

SECTION 5.04. Additional Bonds. The Issuer covenants not to issue any other
Bonds or other debt obligations secured by the Series 2025 Special Assessments. In addition, the
Issuer covenants not to issue any other Bonds or debt obligations for capital projects, secured by
Special Assessments on the assessable lands within the District that are subject to the Series 2025
Special Assessments, until the Series 2025 Special Assessments are Substantially Absorbed. The
District shall present the Trustee with a certification that the Series 2025 Special Assessments are

24
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 54



Substantially Absorbed and the Trustee may rely conclusively upon such certification and shall
have no duty to verify if the Series 2025 Special Assessments are Substantially Absorbed. In the
absence of such written certification, the Trustee is entitled to assume that the Series 2025 Special
Assessments have not been Substantially Absorbed. Such covenant shall not prohibit the Issuer
from issuing refunding Bonds or any Bonds or other obligations secured by Special Assessments
levied on District Lands not subject to the Series 2025 Special Assessments, or to finance any other
capital project that is necessary to remediate any natural disaster, catastrophic damage or failure
with respect to the Series 2025 Project.

SECTION 5.05. Acknowledgement Regarding the Moneys in the Series 2025
Acquisition and Construction Account Following an Event of Default. In accordance with the
provisions of the Series 2025 Indenture, the Series 2025 Bonds are payable solely from the Series
2025 Pledged Revenues and any other moneys held by the Trustee under the Series 2025 Indenture
for such purpose. Anything in the Series 2025 Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the Issuer
hereby acknowledges that the Series 2025 Pledged Revenues include, without limitation, all
amounts on deposit in the Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account then held by the
Trustee, and upon the occurrence of an Event of Default with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds,
(i) the Series 2025 Pledged Revenues may not be used by the Issuer (whether to pay costs of the
Series 2025 Project or otherwise) without the consent of the Majority Holders and (ii) the Series
2025 Pledged Revenues may be used by the Trustee, at the direction or with the approval of the
Majority Holders, to pay costs and expenses incurred in connection with the pursuit of remedies
under the Series 2025 Indenture, provided, however notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary the Trustee is also authorized to utilize the Series 2025 Pledged Revenues to pay fees and
expenses as provided in Section 10.12 of the Master Indenture.

[END OF ARTICLE V]

25
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 55



ARTICLE VI
THE TRUSTEE; THE PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR

SECTION 6.01. Acceptance of Trust. The Trustee accepts and agrees to execute the
trusts hereby created and agrees to perform such trusts upon the terms and conditions set forth in
the Series 2025 Indenture. The Trustee agrees to act as Paying Agent, Registrar and Authenticating
Agent for the Series 2025 Bonds.

SECTION 6.02. Trustee’s Duties. The Trustee shall not be responsible in any
manner for the due execution of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture by the Issuer or for the
recitals contained herein (except for the certificate of authentication on the Series 2025 Bonds), all
of which are made solely by the Issuer. Nothing contained herein shall limit the rights, benefits,
privileges, protection and entitlement inuring to the Trustee under the Master Indenture.

[END OF ARTICLE VI]

26
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 56



ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 7.01. Interpretation of First Supplemental Trust Indenture. This First
Supplemental Trust Indenture amends and supplements the Master Indenture with respect to the
Series 2025 Bonds, and all of the provisions of the Master Indenture, to the extent not inconsistent
herewith, are incorporated in this First Supplemental Trust Indenture by reference. To the
maximum extent possible, the Master Indenture and the First Supplemental Trust Indenture shall
be read and construed as one document.

SECTION 7.02. Amendments. Any amendments to this First Supplemental Trust
Indenture shall be made pursuant to the provisions for amendment contained in the Master
Indenture.

SECTION 7.03. Counterparts. This First Supplemental Trust Indenture may be
executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be
an original; but such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

SECTION 7.04. Appendices and Exhibits. Any and all schedules, appendices or
exhibits referred to in and attached to this First Supplemental Trust Indenture are hereby
incorporated herein and made a part of this First Supplemental Trust Indenture for all purposes.

SECTION 7.05. Payment Dates. In any case in which an Interest Payment Date or
the maturity date of the Series 2025 Bonds or the date fixed for the redemption of any Series 2025
Bonds shall be other than a Business Day, then payment of interest, principal or Redemption Price
need not be made on such date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day, with the
same force and effect as if made on the due date, and no interest on such payment shall accrue for
the period after such due date if payment is made on such next succeeding Business Day.

SECTION 7.06. No Rights Conferred on Others. Nothing herein contained shall
confer any right upon any Person other than the parties hereto and the Holders of the Series 2025
Bonds, and no other person is intended to be a third party beneficiary hereof to be entitled to assert
or preserve any claim hereunder.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - SIGNATURE PAGE
FOLLOWS]

27
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 57



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lakefront Estates Community Development District has
caused this First Supplemental Trust Indenture to be executed by the Chair of its Board of
Supervisors and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed and attested by the Secretary of its Board
of Supervisors and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association has caused this First
Supplemental Trust Indenture to be executed by one of its authorized signatories, all as of the day
and year first above written.

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

[SEAL]
Attest:
By:
Name: Dovber Blasberg
By: Title: Chair, Board of Supervisors

Name: Andrew Karmeris
Title:  Secretary, Board of Supervisors

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee, Paying Agent and Registrar

By:
Name: Robert Hedgecock
Title: Vice President

28
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 58



EXHIBIT A
DESCRIPTION OF SERIES 2025 PROJECT

The Series 2025 Project includes, but is not limited to, the following improvements
identified for Phase 1A, comprising Assessment Area One:

Improvement Series_ 2025 Project
Estimated Cost
Wetland Basins $500,000
Earthwork $2,400,000
Roadways $3,959,216
Entrance Features $500,000
Water Supply Facilities $7,094,807
Sanitary Sewer Facilities $7,864,796
Stormwater Management Facilities $1,141,490
Electrical $878,377
Landscaping/Parks $750,000
Professional Fees $1,000,000
Contingency $2,596,369
TOTAL $28,560,055

a. The probable costs estimated herein do not include anticipated carrying cost, interest reserves or other
anticipated District expenditures that may be incurred.

b. The developer reserves the right to finance any of the improvements outlined above, and have such
improvements owned and maintained by a property owner’s or homeowner’s association, in which case

such items would not be part of the CIP. ) _ _

c. The District may enter into an agreement with a third-party, or an applicable property owner’s or
homeowner’s association, to maintain any District-owned improvements, subject to the approval of the
District’s bond counsel. ) o

d. Impact fee credits may be available from master roadway and utility improvements. The developer and the
District will enter into an acquisition agreement whereby the developer may elect to keep any such credits,
provided that consideration is provided to the District in the form of improvements, land, a prepayment of debt
assessments, or other consideration.

Source: Lakefront Estates Community Development District First Supplemental Engineer’s
Report dated March 19, 2025, supplementing the Engineer’s Report dated December 20,
2023, each prepared by Steven L. Dobbs Engineering, LLC.

A-1
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 59



EXHIBIT B

[FORM OF SERIES 2025 BOND]

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF GLADES

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BOND, SERIES 2025

(ASSESSMENT AREA ONE)
Interest Rate Maturity Date Date of Original Issuance = CUSIP Number
% May 1,20 [CLOSING DATE], 2025

Registered Owner: CEDE & CO.
Principal Amount:

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that the Lakefront Estates Community
Development District (the “Issuer”), for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered
Owner shown above or registered assigns, on the maturity date set forth above, from the sources
hereinafter mentioned, the principal amount set forth above (with interest thereon at the interest
rate per annum set forth above, computed on 360-day year of twelve 30-day months). Principal of
and interest on this Bond are payable by U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, in Fort
Lauderdale, Florida, as paying agent (said U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association and/or
any bank or trust company to become successor paying agent being herein called the “Paying
Agent”) made payable to the Registered Owner and mailed on each Interest Payment Date
commencing May 1, 2026, to the address of the Registered Owner as such name and address shall
appear on the registry books of the Issuer maintained by U.S. Bank Trust Company, National
Association, as Registrar (said U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association and any successor
Registrar being herein called the “Registrar”) at the close of business on the fifteenth day of the
calendar month preceding each Interest Payment Date or the date on which the principal of a Bond
is to be paid (the “Record Date”), provided however presentation is not required for payment while
the Series 2025 Bonds are registered in book-entry only form. Such interest shall be payable from
the most recent Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication hereof to which
interest has been paid, unless the date of authentication hereof is a May 1 or November 1 to which
interest has been paid, in which case from the date of authentication hereof, or unless such date of
authentication is prior to May 1, 2026, in which case from the date of initial delivery, or unless the
date of authentication hereof is between a Record Date and the next succeeding Interest Payment
Date, in which case from such Interest Payment Date. Any such interest not so punctually paid or
duly provided for shall forthwith cease to be payable to the Registered Owner on such Record Date
and may be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of business on a
Special Record Date for the payment of such defaulted interest to be fixed by the Paying Agent,

B-1
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 60



notice whereof shall be given to Bondholders of record as of the fifth (5th) day prior to such
mailing, at their registered addresses, not less than ten (10) days prior to such Special Record Date,
or may be paid, at any time in any other lawful manner, as more fully provided in the Series 2025
Indenture (defined below). Any capitalized term used in this Bond and not otherwise defined shall
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Series 2025 Indenture.

THE SERIES 2025 BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER
PAYABLE SOLELY OUT OF THE SERIES 2025 PLEDGED REVENUES PLEDGED
THEREFOR UNDER THE SERIES 2025 INDENTURE AND NEITHER THE PROPERTY,
THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT, NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE ISSUER, GLADES
COUNTY, FLORIDA (THE “COUNTY™), THE STATE OF FLORIDA (THE “STATE”), OR
ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, IS PLEDGED AS SECURITY FOR
THE PAYMENT OF THE SERIES 2025 BONDS, EXCEPT THAT THE ISSUER IS
OBLIGATED UNDER THE SERIES 2025 INDENTURE TO LEVY AND TO EVIDENCE AND
CERTIFY, OR CAUSE TO BE CERTIFIED, FOR COLLECTION, SERIES 2025 SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS (AS DEFINED IN THE SERIES 2025 INDENTURE) TO SECURE AND PAY
THE SERIES 2025 BONDS. THE SERIES 2025 BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN
INDEBTEDNESS OF THE ISSUER, THE COUNTY, THE STATE, OR ANY OTHER
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY
CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY PROVISION OR LIMITATION.

This Bond is one of an authorized issue of Series 2025 Bonds of the Lakefront Estates
Community Development District, a community development district duly created, organized and
existing under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the Uniform Community Development District Act
of 1980), as amended (the “Act”), Ordinance No. 2023-7 enacted by the Board of County
Commissioners of Glades County, Florida, which became effective on April 11, 2023, designated
as “Lakefront Estates Community Development District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2025
(Assessment Area One)” (the “Series 2025 Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of
[ ] and 00/100 Dollars ($[PAR AMOUNT].00) of like date, tenor and effect,
except as to number. The Series 2025 Bonds are being issued under authority of the laws and
Constitution of the State, including particularly the Act, to pay, among other things, the costs of
constructing and/or acquiring a portion of the Series 2025 Project (as defined in the herein referred
to Series 2025 Indenture). The Series 2025 Bonds shall be issued as fully registered Series 2025
Bonds in Authorized Denominations, as set forth in the Series 2025 Indenture. The Series 2025
Bonds are issued under and secured by a Master Trust Indenture dated as of | | 1, 2025
(the “Master Indenture”), as supplemented by a First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of
[ | 1, 2025 (the “First Supplemental Trust Indenture” and together with the Master
Indenture, the “Series 2025 Indenture”), each by and between the Issuer and the Trustee, executed
counterparts of which are on file at the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee in Fort
Lauderdale, Florida.

Reference is hereby made to the Series 2025 Indenture for the provisions, among others,
with respect to the custody and application of the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds issued under
the Series 2025 Indenture, the operation and application of the Series 2025 Reserve Account within
the Debt Service Reserve Fund and other Funds and Accounts (each as defined in the Series 2025
Indenture) charged with and pledged to the payment of the principal of and the interest on the
Series 2025 Bonds, the levy and the evidencing and certifying for collection, of the Series 2025

B-2

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 61



Special Assessments, the nature and extent of the security for the Series 2025 Bonds, the terms
and conditions on which the Series 2025 Bonds are issued, the rights, duties and obligations of the
Issuer and of the Trustee under the Series 2025 Indenture, the conditions under which such Series
2025 Indenture may be amended without the consent of the Registered Owners of the Series 2025
Bonds, the conditions under which such Series 2025 Indenture may be amended with the consent
of the Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Series 2025 Bonds
outstanding, and as to other rights and remedies of the Registered Owners of the Series 2025
Bonds.

It is expressly agreed by the Registered Owner of this Bond that such Registered Owner
shall never have the right to require or compel the exercise of the ad valorem taxing power of the
Issuer, the County, the State or any other political subdivision thereof, or taxation in any form of
any real or personal property of the Issuer, the County, the State or any other political subdivision
thereof, for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond or the making of any other
sinking fund and other payments provided for in the Series 2025 Indenture, except for Series 2025
Special Assessments to be assessed and levied by the Issuer as set forth in the Series 2025
Indenture.

By the acceptance of this Bond, the Registered Owner hereof assents to all the provisions
of the Series 2025 Indenture.

This Bond is payable from and secured by Series 2025 Pledged Revenues, as such term is
defined in the Series 2025 Indenture, all in the manner provided in the Series 2025 Indenture. The
Series 2025 Indenture provides for the levy and the evidencing and certifying, of non-ad valorem
assessments in the form of Series 2025 Special Assessments to secure and pay the Series 2025
Bonds.

The Series 2025 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity in the amounts, at the
times and in the manner provided below. All payments of the redemption price of the Series 2025
Bonds shall be made on the dates specified below. Upon any redemption of Series 2025 Bonds
other than in accordance with scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemptions, the Issuer shall
cause to be recalculated and delivered to the Trustee revised mandatory sinking fund redemption
amounts recalculated so as to amortize the Outstanding principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds in
substantially equal annual installments of principal and interest (subject to rounding to Authorized
Denominations of principal) over the remaining term of the Series 2025 Bonds. The mandatory
sinking fund redemption amounts as so recalculated shall not result in an increase in the aggregate
of the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts for all Series 2025 Bonds in any year. In the
event of a redemption or purchase occurring less than forty-five (45) days prior to a date on which
a mandatory sinking fund redemption payment is due, the foregoing recalculation shall not be
made to the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts due in the year in which such redemption
or purchase occurs, but shall be made to the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts for the
immediately succeeding and subsequent years.

Optional Redemption

The Series 2025 Bonds maturing after May 1, 20[___] may, at the option of the Issuer be
called for redemption prior to maturity as a whole or in part, at any time, on or after May 1, 20[___ ]

B-3

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 62



(less than all Series 2025 Bonds of a maturity to be selected by lot), at a Redemption Price equal
to the principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest from the most
recent Interest Payment Date through which interest has been paid to the redemption date from
moneys on deposit in the Series 2025 Optional Redemption Subaccount of the Series 2025 Bond
Redemption Account. If such optional redemption shall be in part, the Issuer shall select such
principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds to be optionally redeemed from each maturity so that debt
service on the remaining Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds is substantially level.

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption in Whole or in Part

The Series 2025 Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to maturity
by the Issuer in whole or in part, on any date (other than in the case of clause (i) below, which
extraordinary mandatory redemption in part must occur on a Quarterly Redemption Date), at a
Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed,
plus interest accrued to the redemption date, as follows:

Q) from Series 2025 Prepayment Principal deposited into the Series 2025
Prepayment Subaccount of the Series 2025 Bond Redemption Account following the
Prepayment in whole or in part of Series 2025 Special Assessments on any assessable
property within Assessment Area One in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.05(a)
of the First Supplemental Trust Indenture, together with any excess moneys transferred by
the Trustee from the Series 2025 Reserve Account to the Series 2025 Prepayment
Subaccount as a result of such Series 2025 Prepayment and pursuant to Sections 4.01(f)
and 4.05(a) of the First Supplemental Trust Indenture. If such redemption shall be in part,
the Issuer shall select such principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed from
each maturity so that debt service on the remaining Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds is
substantially level.

(i) from moneys, if any, on deposit in the Funds, Accounts and subaccounts
held by the Trustee under the First Supplemental Trust Indenture (other than the Series
2025 Rebate Fund and the Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account) sufficient
to pay and redeem all Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds and accrued interest thereon to the
redemption date or dates in addition to all amounts owed to Persons under the Master
Indenture and the First Supplemental Trust Indenture.

(iii)  upon the Completion Date, from any funds remaining on deposit in the
Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account in accordance with the provisions of
the First Supplemental Trust Indenture, not otherwise reserved to complete the Series 2025
Project and transferred to the Series 2025 General Redemption Subaccount of the Series
2025 Bond Redemption Account, together with moneys deposited therein in accordance
with the provisions of the First Supplemental Trust Indenture, as a result of the reduction
of the Series 2025 Reserve Requirement. If such redemption shall be in part, the Issuer
shall select such principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed from each maturity
so that debt service on the remaining Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds is substantially level.

B-4
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 63



Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption

The Series 2025 Bonds maturing on May 1, 20[ ] are subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption from the moneys on deposit in the Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account on
May 1 in the years and in the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts set forth below at a
Redemption Price of 100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Mandatory Sinking Fund
Year Redemption Amount Year Redemption Amount

“ Maturity.

The Series 2025 Bonds maturing on May 1, 20[___ ] are subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption from the moneys on deposit in the Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account on
May 1 in the years and in the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts set forth below at a
Redemption Price of 100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Mandatory Sinking Fund
Year Redemption Amount Year Redemption Amount

“ Maturity.

The Series 2025 Bonds maturing on May 1, 20[___ ] are subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption from the moneys on deposit in the Series 2025 Sinking Fund Account on May 1 in the
years and in the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts set forth below at a Redemption
Price of 100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

B-5

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 64



Mandatory Sinking Fund Mandatory Sinking Fund
Year Redemption Amount Year Redemption Amount

* Maturity.

Except as otherwise provided in the Series 2025 Indenture, if less than all of the Series
2025 Bonds subject to redemption shall be called for redemption, the particular such Series 2025
Bonds or portions of such Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot by the
Registrar as provided in the Series 2025 Indenture.

Notice of each redemption of the Series 2025 Bonds is required to be sent by Electronic
Means or mailed by the Registrar, postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) nor more than sixty
(60) days prior to the redemption date to each Registered Owner of the Series 2025 Bonds to be
redeemed at the address of such Registered Owner recorded on the bond register maintained by
the Registrar. The Issuer may provide that the any optional redemption of Series 2025 Bonds
issued under the Series 2025 Indenture may be subject to certain conditions; provided that the
notice of such conditional optional redemption must expressly state that such optional redemption
is conditional and describe the conditions for such redemption. On the date designated for
redemption, notice having been given and money for the payment of the Redemption Price being
held by the Paying Agent, all as provided in the Series 2025 Indenture, the Series 2025 Bonds or
such portions thereof so called for redemption shall become and be due and payable at the
Redemption Price provided for the redemption of such Series 2025 Bonds or such portions thereof
on such date, interest on such Series 2025 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption
shall cease to accrue, such Series 2025 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption
shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under the Series 2025 Indenture and the
Registered Owners thereof shall have no rights in respect of such Series 2025 Bonds or such
portions thereof so called for redemption except to receive payments of the Redemption Price
thereof so held by the Paying Agent. Further notice of redemption shall be given by the Registrar
to certain registered securities depositories and information services as set forth in the Series 2025
Indenture, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of such
further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if notice thereof
is given as above prescribed.

The Registered Owner of this Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the
Series 2025 Indenture or to institute action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any action
with respect to any Event of Default under the Series 2025 Indenture, or to institute, appear in or
defend any suit or other proceeding with respect thereto, except as provided in the Series 2025
Indenture.

In certain events, on the conditions, in the manner and with the effect set forth in the Series
2025 Indenture, the principal of all the Series 2025 Bonds then Outstanding under the Series 2025

B-6

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 65



Indenture may become and may be declared due and payable before the stated maturity thereof,
with the interest accrued thereon.

Modifications or alterations of the Series 2025 Indenture or of any Series 2025 Indenture
supplemental thereto may be made only to the extent and in the circumstances permitted by the
Series 2025 Indenture.

Any moneys held by the Trustee or Paying Agent in trust for the payment and discharge of
any Bond which remain unclaimed for two (2) years after the date when such Bond has become
due and payable, either at its stated maturity date or by call for earlier redemption shall be paid to
the Issuer, thereupon and thereafter no claimant shall have any rights against the Trustee or Paying
Agent to or in respect of such moneys.

If the Issuer deposits or causes to be deposited with the Trustee funds or Government
Obligations (as defined in the Master Indenture) sufficient to pay the principal or Redemption
Price of any Series 2025 Bond becoming due at maturity or by call for redemption in the manner
set forth in the Series 2025 Indenture, together with the interest accrued to the due date or date of
redemption as applicable, the lien of such Series 2025 Bonds as to the trust estate with respect to
the Series 2025 Bonds shall be discharged, except for the rights of the Registered Owners thereof
with respect to the funds so deposited as provided in the Series 2025 Indenture.

This Bond shall have all the qualities and incidents, including negotiability, of investment
securities within the meaning and for all the purposes of the Uniform Commercial Code of the
State.

This Bond shall initially be issued in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee for DTC, and so
long as this Bond is held in book-entry-only form Cede & Co. shall be considered the Registered
Owner for all purposes hereof, including the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond.
Payment to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC. Payments by Direct Participants
to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to individual Beneficial
Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct Participants and Indirect Participants and not of DTC,
the Issuer or the Trustee.

The Issuer shall keep books for the registration of the Series 2025 Bonds at the designated
corporate trust office of the Registrar in Fort Lauderdale, Florida. Subject to the restrictions
contained in the Series 2025 Indenture, and except when the Series 2025 Bonds are registered in
book entry only form, the Series 2025 Bonds may be transferred or exchanged by the Registered
Owner thereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing only upon the books of the
Issuer kept by the Registrar and only upon surrender thereof together with a written instrument of
transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the Registered Owner or his duly authorized
attorney. In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Series 2025 Bonds is
exercised, the Issuer shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or
Series 2025 Bonds in authorized form and in like aggregate principal amount in accordance with
the provisions of the Series 2025 Indenture. Every Bond presented or surrendered for transfer or
exchange shall be duly endorsed or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form
satisfactory to the Trustee, Paying Agent or the Registrar, duly executed by the Bondholder or his
attorney duly authorized in writing. Transfers and exchanges shall be made without charge to the

B-7
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 66



Bondholder, except that the Issuer or the Trustee may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover
any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with any transfer or
exchange of Series 2025 Bonds. Neither the Issuer nor the Registrar on behalf of the Issuer shall
be required (i) to issue, transfer or exchange any Series 2025 Bond during a period beginning at
the opening of fifteen (15) days before the day of mailing of a notice of redemption of Series 2025
Bonds selected for redemption and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing, or
(i) to transfer or exchange any Series 2025 Bond so selected for redemption in whole or in part.

The Issuer, the Trustee, the Paying Agent and the Registrar shall deem and treat the person
in whose name any Bond shall be registered upon the books kept by the Registrar as the absolute
owner thereof (whether or not such Bond shall be overdue, and notwithstanding any notation of
ownership or other writing thereon made by anyone other than the Issuer, the Trustee, any Paying
Agent, the Registrar or the Authenticating Agent) for the purpose of receiving payment of or on
account of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bond as the same becomes due,
and for all other purposes. All such payments so made to any such Registered Owner or upon his
order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent
of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer, the Trustee, the Paying Agent, nor the Registrar
shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, to
happen, and to be performed, precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond exist, have happened
and have been performed in regular and due form and time as required by the laws and Constitution
of the State of Florida applicable thereto, including particularly the Act, and that the issuance of
this Bond, and of the issue of the Series 2025 Bonds of which this Bond is one, is in full compliance
with all constitutional and statutory limitations or provisions.

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any
benefit or security under the Series 2025 Indenture until it shall have been authenticated by
execution of the Trustee, or such other authenticating agent as may be appointed by the Trustee
under the Series 2025 Indenture, of the certificate of authentication endorsed hereon.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - SIGNATURE PAGE
FOLLOWS]

B-8

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 67



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lakefront Estates Community Development District has
caused this Bond to be signed by the manual signature of the Chair of its Board of Supervisors and
a manual seal to be imprinted hereon, and attested by the manual signature of the Secretary of its
Board of Supervisors, all as of the date hereof.

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By:
Chair, Board of Supervisors

(SEAL)

Attest:

By:

Secretary, Board of Supervisors

B-9

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 68



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Bond is one of the Series 2025 Bonds delivered pursuant to the within mentioned
Series 2025 Indenture.

Date of Authentication: [CLOSING DATE], 2025

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee

By:

Vice President

B-10

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 69



STATEMENT OF VALIDATION

This Bond is one of a series of Bonds which were validated by judgment of the Circuit
Court of the Tenth Judicial Circuit of Florida, in and for Charlotte, Collier, Glades, Hendry & Lee
Counties rendered on the 22nd day of April, 2024.

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By:
Chair, Board of Supervisors

(SEAL)

Attest:

By:

Secretary, Board of Supervisors

B-11
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 70



ABBREVIATIONS

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of the within Bond,
shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or
regulations:

TEN COM - as tenants in common
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties
JT TEN - as joint tenants with rights of survivorship and

not as tenants in common

UNIFORM TRANSFER MIN ACT - Custodian
(Cust) (Minor)

Under Uniform Transfer to Minors Act

(State)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

B-12

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 71



ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto

(please print or typewrite name and address of assignee)

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints

Attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of

substitution in the premises.

Signature Guarantee:

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by
a member firm of the New York Stock
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust
company

Please insert social security or other identifying
number of assignee.

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment
must correspond with the name of the
Registered Owner as it appears upon the face of
the within Bond in every particular, without
alteration or enlargement or any change
whatsoever.

B-13

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 72



EXHIBIT C

FORMS OF REQUISITIONS

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2025 (Assessment Area One)

(Acquisition and Construction)

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of the Lakefront Estates Community Development
District (the “District”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture by and between the District and U.S. Bank
Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), dated as of | | 1, 2025
as supplemented by that certain First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of | | 1,
2025 (collectively, the “Series 2025 Indenture”) (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the
meaning ascribed to such term in the Series 2025 Indenture):

(A)
(B)
(©)
(D)
(E)

(F)

Requisition Number:

Identify Acquisition Agreement, if applicable;
Name of payee pursuant to Acquisition Agreement:
Amount Payable:

Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments):

Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to be made:

Series 2025 Acquisition and Construction Account of the Acquisition and
Construction Fund

The undersigned hereby certifies that:

1.

2.

obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District.

each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Series 2025
Acquisition and Construction Account of the Acquisition and Construction Fund.

each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the Costs of the
Series 2025 Project.

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the payee set forth above, which has not been
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof.

C-1

ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 73



The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate
entitled to retain.

Attached hereto or on file with the District are copies of the invoice(s) or applicable
contracts from the vendor of the property acquired or the services rendered, as well as applicable
conveyance instruments (e.g. deed(s), bill(s) of sale, easement(s), etc.) with respect to which
disbursement is hereby requested.

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By:
Responsible Officer

Date:

CONSULTING ENGINEER’S APPROVAL FOR
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE OR [NON-OPERATING COSTS REQUESTS ONLY]

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost
of the Series 2025 Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction
contract; (ii) the plans and specifications for the portion of the Series 2025 Project with respect to
which such disbursement is being made; and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer, as such
report shall have been amended or modified on the date hereof. The Consulting Engineer further
certifies and agrees that for any acquisition (a) the portion of the Series 2025 Project that is the
subject of this requisition is complete, and (b) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the
portion of the Series 2025 Project to be acquired with this disbursement is no more than the lesser
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such
improvements.

Consulting Engineer

Date:

C-2
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 74



FORMS OF REQUISITIONS

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2025 (Assessment Area One)

(Costs of Issuance)

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of the Lakefront Estates Community Development
District (the “District”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture by and between the District and U.S. Bank
Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee™), dated as of | | 1, 2025,
as supplemented by that certain First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of | | 1,
2025 (collectively, the “Series 2025 Indenture”) (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the
meaning ascribed to such term in the Series 2025 Indenture):

(A)  Requisition Number:
(B)  Amount Payable:
(C)  Purpose for which paid or incurred: Costs of Issuance

(D)  Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to be made:

Series 2025 Costs of Issuance Account of the Acquisition and Construction Fund
The undersigned hereby certifies that:

1. this requisition is for Costs of Issuance payable from the Series 2025 Costs of
Issuance Account that have not previously been paid;

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Series 2025 Costs
of Issuance Account;

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the issuance of
the Series 2025 Bonds; and

4. each disbursement represents a cost of issuance which has not previously been paid.

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the payee set forth above, which has not been
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof.

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate
entitled to retain.

C-3
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 75



Attached hereto or on file with the District are copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of
the services rendered, with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested.

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By:

Responsible Officer

Date:

C-4
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 76



EXHIBIT D
FORM OF INVESTOR LETTER

[Date]

FMSbonds, Inc.
20660 W. Dixie Highway
North Miami Beach, FL 33180

Re:  $[PAR AMOUNT] Lakefront Estates Community Development District Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2025 (Assessment Area One)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned is authorized to sign this letter [on behalf of Name of Non-Individual
Investor], as the beneficial owner (the “Investor”) of $ of the above-referenced Bonds [state
maturing on . , bearing interest at the rate of __ % per annum and CUSIP
#] (herein, the “Investor Bonds™).

In connection with the purchase of the Investor Bonds by the Investor, the Investor hereby
makes the following representations upon which you may rely:

1. The Investor has authority to purchase the Investor Bonds and to execute this letter,
any other instruments and documents required to be executed by the Investor in connection with
the purchase of the Investor Bonds.

2. The Investor meets the criteria of an “accredited investor” as described in one or
more of the categories derived from Rule 501(a) under Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended (the “Securities Act”) summarized below, and therefore, has sufficient knowledge and
experience in financial and business matters, including purchase and ownership of municipal and
other tax-exempt obligations including those which are not rated or credit-enhanced, to be able to
evaluate the risks and merits of the investment represented by the Bonds. Please check the
appropriate box below to indicate the type of accredited investor:

u a bank, registered broker, dealer or investment adviser (or investment
adviser exempt from registration under Section 203(l) or (m) within the meaning of the
Investment Advisers Act of 1940), insurance company, registered investment company,
business development company, small business investment company; or rural business
investment company;

d an employee benefit plan, within the meaning of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, if a bank, insurance company, or registered investment
adviser makes the investment decisions, or if the employee benefit plan has total assets in
excess of $5 million;

d an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, corporation, Massachusetts or similar business trust partnership, or

D-1
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 77



limited liability company, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Investor
Bonds with assets exceeding $5 million;

(N a business in which all the equity owners are “accredited investors”;

a a natural person who has individual net worth, or joint net worth with the
person’s spouse or spousal equivalent, that exceeds $1 million at the time of the purchase,
excluding the value of the primary residence of such person, except that mortgage
indebtedness on the primary residence shall not be included as a liability;

a a natural person with income exceeding $200,000 in each of the two most
recent years or joint income with a spouse or spousal equivalent exceeding $300,000 for
those years and a reasonable expectation of the same income level in the current year;

(N a trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for the specific
purpose of acquiring the Investor Bonds whose purchase is directed by a sophisticated
person;

(. an entity, of a type other than those set forth above, that owns investments
in excess of $5,000,000 and that was not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the
Investor Bonds;

(N a natural person holding in good standing one or more professional
certifications or designations or credentials from a designated accredited educational
institution qualifying an individual for “accredited investor” status;

a a “family office” with at least $5,000,000 in assets under management, that
was not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Investor Bonds, and whose
prospective investment is directed by a person capable of evaluating the merits and risks
of the prospective investment; or

a a “family client” of a family office described in the prior bullet point whose
prospective investment is directed by that family office.

3. The Investor has been supplied with an (electronic) copy of the Preliminary Limited
Offering Memorandum dated | |, 2025, of the Issuer and relating to the Bonds (the
“Offering Document”) and has reviewed the Offering Document and represents that such Offering
Document has provided full and meaningful disclosure in order to make an informed decision to
invest in the Investor Bonds.

Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings given to such
terms in the Indenture.

D-2
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 78



Very truly yours,
[Name], [Type of Entity]

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Or

[Name], an Individual

D-3
ACTIVE 708147289v4

Page 79



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT

B-1
ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 80



EXHIBIT C

FORM OF PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM

C-1
ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 81



EXHIBITD
FORM OF RULE 15c2-12 CERTIFICATE

Lakefront Estates Community Development District
$ “ Special Assessment Bonds,
Series 2025 (Assessment Area One)

The undersigned hereby certifies and represents to FMSbonds, Inc. (“Underwriter”) that
he is the Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors of Lakefront Estates Community Development
District (the “District”) is authorized to execute and deliver this Certificate, and further certifies
on behalf of the District to the Underwriter as follows:

1. This Certificate is delivered to enable the Underwriter to comply with Rule 15¢2-12
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”) in connection with the
offering and sale of the above captioned bonds (the “Series 2025 Bonds”).

2. In connection with the offering and sale of the Series 2025 Bonds, there has been
prepared a Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum, dated the date hereof, setting forth
information concerning the Series 2025 Bonds and the District (the “Preliminary Limited Offering
Memorandum”).

3. As used herein, “Permitted Omissions” shall mean the offering price, interest rate,
selling compensation, aggregate principal amount, principal amount per maturity, delivery dates,
ratings, the identity of the Underwriter and other terms of the Series 2025 Bonds depending on
such matters.

4. The undersigned hereby deems the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum
“final” as of its date, within the meaning of the Rule, except for the Permitted Omissions, and the
information therein is accurate and complete except for the Permitted Omissions.

5. If, at any time prior to the execution of a Bond Purchase Contract, any event occurs
as a result of which the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum might include an untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements
therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the District will
promptly notify the Underwriter thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his hand this ___ day of
, 2025.

LAKEFRONT ESTATES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Chairperson

* Preliminary, subject to change.
D-1
ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 82



EXHIBIT E

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

E-1
ACTIVE 690122075v6

Page 83



	Lakefront Estates Community Development District - October 22, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	September 25, 2025 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Consider Approval of First Supplemental Engineer’s Report
	Consider Resolution No. 2025-09 – Delegation Resolution




